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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Global International
Credit Group Limited (the “Company” together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), I am delighted to present the annual report of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 ("FY2017").

As we anticipated in the annual report of the Company last year, FY2017
was a challenging year for the Group, though the increase in interest
rates by the US Federal Reserve did not exert an adverse impact on the
property market and that the upward track in Hong Kong property prices
continues, as part of our risk management strategy, we continue to adopt
stringent credit controls in developing our mortgage loan business
during the year. While at the same time, our Group’s performance
has been negatively impacted by the intensified competition in the
money lending industry, as there are an increasing number of money
lenders seeking market share in the mortgage loan business instigating
aggressive marketing and pricing strategies. The Group's revenue thus
experienced a decline of HK$26.8 million or 20.6% to HK$103.5 million as
compared to HK$130.3 million in the previous year.

In response to this challenging business environment, the Group has put
more effort in sourcing different financial resources to reduce our cost of
funding and implementing various cost saving measures to preserve the
Group's profitability. Still, the more judicious approach taken on credit
control has inevitably limited the growth of our business performance.
The Group reported a decline in profit attributable to shareholders of
HKS$13.5 million or 17.6% to HK$63.0 million in FY2017. Excluding the net
financial impact of HK$8.6 million from the convertible promissory note
of Quark Finance Group, profit attributable to shareholders declined by
HK$3.4 million or 5.9% to HK$54.4 million in FY2017.

The mortgage loan market in 2018 remains challenging as we anticipate
some of the market players will continue to adopt aggressive pricing
and credit underwriting strategies to capture market share. While it is
the Group’s risk management strategy to remain cautions in the current
red-hot property market and to adopt tight credit policy to preserve the
overall quality of our loan portfolio, though we may give up some of the
business growth opportunities in the short run, we believe it is essential
for preserving the Group’s profitability in the long run.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

EEHE (E)

I ' would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to all the senior
management and staff of the Group for their commitment and
contributions in upholding our service quality. | remain deeply grateful to
my fellow Board members for their invaluable advice and contributions
to the Group's direction of development and corporate governance. | also
wish to offer sincere thanks to our customers, shareholders and business
partners for their continuing loyalty and trust. We will continue with
our endeavor to pursue growth of our business and create value for our
shareholders.

To reward and thank our shareholders for their support, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share.

Wang Yao
Chairman of the Board

27 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE N DA

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the money lending business focusing
primarily on providing short-term and long-term property mortgage
loans in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

During the year ended 31 December 2017 (“FY2017"), the property
prices in Hong Kong continues to rise. The buoyant property and stock
market in Hong Kong, signs of economic recovery momentum and the
continued prudent measures for property mortgage loans imposed by
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority during FY2017 create opportunities
for the money lender’'s mortgage loan market. However, in view of the
increasing concerns about an overheating property market and the US
Federal Reserve’s plan to increase interest rates, the Group continued
to adopt stringent credit policies with strict control on loan-to-value
ratio to minimize credit risks of its loan portfolio. Such judicious business
strategies, although having helped preserving the overall credit quality
of the Group’s mortgage loan portfolio, they inevitability have affected
the Group's financial performance. In addition, the fierce competition
in the money lending industry also imposed additional challenges to
the Group’s mortgage loan business. As a result, there was a decrease
in the Group's loan portfolio for the year and the Group's interest
income decreased by approximately HK$26.8 million or 20.6%, from
approximately HK$130.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
("FY2016") to approximately HK$103.5 million for FY2017.
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During FY2017, the Group recognized interest income of approximately
HKS$22.4 million from the convertible promissory note (the “Note”) issued
by Quark Finance Group ("Quark”) as compared to approximately HK$31.0
million in FY2016. Upon the request from Quark for the early repayment
of the Note, the Note has been early redeemed on 22 September 2017
and the Group has subsequently repaid all the outstanding principal and
all accrued but unpaid interest on the loan from Blossom Spring Global
Limited (“Blossom Spring”), the ultimate holding company of the Group,
on 4 October 2017 which was used to finance the Note. Upon the early
redemption of the Note and the early settlement of the loan from the
ultimate holding company, the net financial impact arising from the
Note and the loan from the ultimate holding company decreased by
approximately HK$10.1 million or 54.0% from approximately HK$18.7
million in FY2016 to approximately HK$8.6 million in FY2017.

As a result, the Group reported a decline in profit attributable to
shareholders by 17.6% to approximately HK$63.0 million for FY2017.
Excluding the net financial impact from the Note and the loan from
the ultimate holding company, net profit from the Group’s mortgage
and personal loan business from FY2017 was approximately HK$54.4
million, representing a decline of approximately HK$3.4 million or 5.9% as
compared to FY2016.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Despite the continued cooling measures imposed by the Hong Kong
Government on the property market and the expectation of rising
interest rates, the first-hand property market in Hong Kong remains
active and property prices continues its rising momentum in FY2017.
Nevertheless, the Group believes that the current property market
remains unpredictable and the Group will continue to emphasise on
credit risk management to preserve the overall quality of its mortgage
loan portfolio.

Following the additional licensing conditions imposed by the
Government on money lenders with effect from 1 December 2016 with
an aim to tackle the malpractices of illegal financial intermediates and
to enhance transparency and disclosure, the growth on the number of
licensed money lenders has been moderated. Nevertheless, these more
stringent licensing conditions imposed by the Government has created
further competition among the industry as some of the money lenders
who used to rely on financial intermediates for business referrals turned
to adopt aggressive pricing and marketing strategies to attract customers,
thus affecting the overall yield of the money lending industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For FY2017, the Group's interest income from its money lending
business was approximately HK$103.5 million, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$26.8 million or 20.6% from interest income of
approximately HK$130.3 million for FY2016. Such decrease was a result
of the decrease in average month-end balance of mortgage loans
receivable. The average month-end balance of aggregate mortgage loans
receivable decreased by approximately HK$176.8 million or 19.1% from
approximately HK$927.7 million for FY2016 to approximately HK$750.9
million for FY2017.

Other income

The Group's other income decreased by approximately HK$1.3 million
from approximately HK$1.3 million in FY2016 to HK$45,000 in FY2017.
Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease in referral income from
business referrals during FY2017.

Administrative and other expenses

Administrative and other expenses incurred by the Group mainly
comprised employee benefit expenses, advertising and marketing
expenses, legal and professional fees, provision/reversal of provision
for individual/collective impairment assessment of loans receivable,
operating lease of land and buildings and other administrative expenses.
These expenses, which constitute approximately 28.2% and 26.6% of
the total revenue for FY2017 and FY2016, respectively, decreased from
approximately HK$34.7 million in FY2016 to approximately HK$29.2
million in FY2017, representing a decrease of approximately HKS$5.5
million or 15.9%.

Administrative expenses

Employee benefit expenses decreased by approximately HK$1.0 million
or 7.8% from approximately HK$12.9 million in FY2016 to approximately
HK$11.9 million in FY2017. Staff salaries decreased by approximately
HKS$1.0 million due to decrease in average headcount in FY2017.

Advertising and marketing expenses decreased slightly by approximately
HKS$0.2 million or 2.5% from approximately HK$8.0 million in FY2016 to
approximately HK$7.8 million in FY2017.

Legal and professional fees decreased by approximately HK$0.6 million
or 25.0% from approximately HK$2.4 million in FY2016 to approximately
HKS$1.8 million in FY2017. The decrease in legal and professional fees in
FY2017 was mainly due to a decrease in company secretary’s fee and
retainer fees paid to other professional advisors.

EEENWE DA (&)
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EEENWE DA (&)

Excluding employee benefit expenses, advertising and marketing
expenses and legal and professional fees mentioned above,
administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$0.4 million or
4.5% from approximately HK$8.8 million in FY2016 to approximately
HK$8.4 million in FY2017. These expenses were comprised mainly of
operating lease of land and buildings of approximately HK$4.0 million
(FY2016: HKS$3.9 million); auditor's remuneration of approximately HK$1.6
million (FY2016: HK$1.6 million); depreciation of property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$0.4 million (FY2016: HKS$0.3 million); and
other administrative expenses of approximately HK$2.4 million (FY2016:
HK$3.0 million).

Other expenses

Other expenses comprised the reversal of provision for individual
assessment of loans receivable of approximately HK$0.2 million in
FY2017 (FY2016: provision for individual assessment of loans receivable
of approximately HK$3.4 million), and reversal of provision for collective
impairment assessment of loans receivable of approximately HK$0.6
million in FY 2017 (FY2016: HK$0.8 million).

Fair value change and loss on early redemption on
derivative financial instrument

On 18 December 2015, the Company subscribed for the convertible
promissory note issued by Quark (the “Note”) in the principal amount of
RMB200.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$235.2 million). The
Note carried interest at 10% per annum and matured on 17 December
2018. The Note was convertible into 20% (minimum) to 40% (maximum)
of the total number of shares of Quark on a fully diluted as converted
basis immediately following the conversion if all of the principal amount
of the Note is converted into fully paid Series B Preferred Shares,
depending on the achievement of the performance indicators as
disclosed in the circular of the Company published on 26 October 2015.
Ms. Jin Xiaogin ("Ms. Jin"), the ultimate beneficial owner of the Company,
is the sole ultimate beneficial owner of Expolito Enterprises Limited, a
company which has a 46% interest in the shares of Quark.

The Note was split into two components, including (i) convertible
promissory note, which was carried at amortised cost, and (i)
derivative financial instrument, which was measured at fair value, in the
consolidated financial statements. During FY2017, a fair value loss on
the derivative financial instrument of approximately HK$14.5 million
(FY2016: HK$5.3 million) was recognised in accordance with a valuation
report prepared by an independent third party valuer, International
Valuation Limited. On 21 September 2017, Quark sent a written notice to
the Company seeking consent from the Company to settle the principal
amount and interest of the Note in full. In response to the said demand,
on 22 September 2017, the Company gave the written consent to Quark
to settle the principal amount and interest of the Note and accordingly
Quark arranged the full settlement of the outstanding principal amount
and all accrued but unpaid interest of the Note on the same day. Upon
the early redemption of the Note by Quark, the remaining value of the
derivative financial instrument of approximately HK$0.8 million was fully
written off.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Finance income/(costs) - net

In FY2016, the Group recorded net finance costs of approximately
HKS$3.4 million. In FY2017, the Group recorded net finance income of
approximately HK$14.9 million. Finance costs mainly comprised interest
expenses on secured bank and other borrowings, interest expenses paid
on the loan from the ultimate holding company, exchange realignment
on the loan from the ultimate holding company and exchange losses,
netting off with the interest income from pledged deposit and the Note,
exchange realignment on the Note and gain from early redemption
of the Note. The change from net finance cost position in FY2016 to a
net income position in FY2017 was primarily due to (i) the decrease in
interest expenses paid on other borrowings due to repayment of other
borrowings during the year; (i) gain from early redemption of the Note,
and offset by a decrease in interest income from the Note.

Net interest margin

Net interest margin during the year refers to the interest income in
respect of the Group’s mortgage loans and personal loans less the
net finance costs in respect of bank and other borrowings, divided
by the average of month-end gross loans receivable balances of the
corresponding loans during the year.

Net interest margin increased approximately from 11.0% for FY2016 to
approximately 12.4% for FY2017. The increase was mainly due to the
decrease in interest expenses paid on other borrowings as mentioned
above.

Income tax expenses

The Group's effective tax rate increased from 13.2% for FY2016 to 14.9%
for FY2017. The increase in the effective tax rate was mainly due to the
net effect of (i) the decrease in non-taxable interest income arising from
the Note; (i) the decrease in non-deductible interest expenses arising
from the loan from the ultimate holding company; and (iii) the increase in
non-deductible losses on derivative financial instrument in FY2017.

Profit and total comprehensive income

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit and total comprehensive
income for FY2017 was approximately HK$63.0 million, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$13.5 million or 17.6% from profit and total
comprehensive income of approximately HK$76.5 million for FY2016. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in average month-end
loan portfolio and the early redemption of the Note. Netting off the net
financial impact from the Note, profit and total comprehensive income
from the Group’s mortgage and personal loan business for FY2017 was
approximately HK$54.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$3.4 million or 5.9% as compared to FY2016.
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OUTLOOK

With the rising concerns of an overheating property market and the US
Federal Reserve’s plans to increase interest rates in the coming year, the
property market in Hong Kong is still clouded with uncertainties. Besides,
it is anticipated that the intensified competition in the money lending
industry will continue in 2018 which imposes further pressure on pricing
and credit underwriting strategies. With these challenges, the Group will
continue to develop and expand its loan portfolio by offering competitive
interest rates to customers with better credit quality, deploying resources
in different marketing campaigns and enhancing its service quality to
broaden its customer base. At the same time, the Group will continue
to adopt prudent but sensible credit risk management policies with
strict control on loan-to-value ratio to preserve the overall credit quality
of the Group'’s loan portfolio. While the Group realises such judicious
business strategies adopted may slow down the growth of its profitability
temporarily, it believes such strategies are vital for allowing the Group to
build a solid loan portfolio in response to the unpredictable market.

The Group believes that by leveraging on its professional and high-quality
service, highly-recognised brand name “GICL" and effective credit risk
management policy, it is and will be able to maintain its strong position
in the current increasingly challenging mortgage loan market in Hong
Kong.

Following the early redemption of the Note by Quark during FY2017 and
as at the date of this annual report, the Group has no future plans for
material investments or capital assets.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During FY2017, the Group's operational and capital requirements were
financed principally through retained earnings, loans from a bank and
independent third party licensed money lenders and a loan from the
ultimate holding company.

With tight control imposed by the Government on lending activities
of authorised financial institutions in Hong Kong, the Group'’s future
operations and capital requirements will be mainly financed through
loans from independent third party licensed money lenders, retained
earnings and share capital. The Group will also actively look for diversified
financing resources in the coming year. There were no significant
commitments for capital expenditure as at 31 December 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits
amounted to approximately HK$18.2 million, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$112.2 million as compared to the position as at 31
December 2016. The decrease was mainly attributable to the repayment
of other borrowings during FY2017.

As at 31 December 2017, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$95.4 million, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$300.7 million as compared to the position as at
31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2017, all interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings are repayable on demand and bear variable
interest rate. Other borrowings are secured by (i) certain properties
mortgaged to a subsidiary of the Group by customers for securing loans
receivable; and (i) a corporate guarantee executed by the Company. Bank
borrowing is secured by (i) a floating charge on certain loans receivable of
a subsidiary of the Group; (i) a floating charge on certain bank accounts
of a subsidiary of the Group; and (iii) a corporate guarantee executed by
the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, none of the Group's
borrowing facilities were subject to any covenants relating to financial
ratio requirements or any material covenants that restrict the Group from
undertaking additional debt or equity financing. As at 31 December 2017,
the unutilised facility available to the Group for drawdown amounted to
approximately HK$635.6 million (2016: approximately HK$443.9 million).

Loan from the ultimate holding company

On 21 July 2015, Blossom Spring and the Company had entered into
a shareholder facility agreement (the “Facility”) pursuant to which
Blossom Spring agreed to grant to the Company an unsecured facility
in the amount of up to RMB200.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$235.2 million) for a term of three years, bearing an interest rate of
3.0% per annum on the outstanding principal amount from time to time
for the purpose of funding the Company’s acquisition of the Note which
is disclosed under the section “Significant Investments Held, Material
Acquisitions and Disposals” below.

The loan from the ultimate holding company has been fully repaid on
4 October 2017 upon the early redemption of the Note from Quark.

Current ratio
The Group’s current ratio increased from approximately 2.0 times as at
31 December 2016 to approximately 5.6 times as at 31 December 2017.
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Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio, which was calculated
by dividing net debts (being the total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents and pledged deposit) by total equity, was 0.11 as compared
to 0.75, the position as at 31 December 2016.

Return on total assets and return on equity

The return on total assets increased from approximately 5.9% as at
31 December 2016 to approximately 7.9% at 31 December 2017. The
return on equity decreased from approximately 11.6% as at 31 December
2016 to approximately 9.0% at 31 December 2017.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 18 December 2015, the Company purchased from Quark, and Quark
sold and issued to the Company, the Note in the principal amount
of RMB200.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$235.2 million)
convertible into fully paid Series B Preferred Shares of Quark subject
to conditions under the Share Purchase Agreement. The transaction
constituted a major transaction of the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities in the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

Ms. Jin, the ultimate beneficial owner of the Company, is the sole ultimate
beneficial owner of Expolito Enterprises Limited, a company which has
a 46% interest in the shares of Quark. The Note carried an interest rate of
10.0% per annum on the outstanding principal amount of the Note.

Pursuant to the terms of the note purchase agreement, the outstanding
principal amount of the Note shall be repaid in six equal instalments
starting from 17 December 2017 with the final payment of all the
outstanding principal amount on 17 December 2018. On 21 September
2017, Quark sent a written notice to the Company seeking consent from
the Company to settle the principal amount and interest of the Note
in full. In response to the said demand, and in view of the uncertainties
imposed on the on-going regulatory changes in China P2P market, on
22 September 2017, the Company gave the written consent to Quark
to the settlement of principal amount and interest of the Note and on
the same day, Quark repaid the outstanding principal and interest to the
Company in full.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 22 September 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant
investments held, material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associated companies and joint ventures during the year ended 31
December 2017.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's operation, financial conditions, operational results or growth
prospects are affected by a number of risks and uncertainties as outlined
below. These factors are not exhaustive and there may be other risks in
addition to those shown below which are not known to the Group or
which may not be material now but could become material in the future.

Financial risk
Financial risk factors include currency risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Details of the aforesaid financial risk
factors and the respective risk management measures are elaborated in
Note 3.1 “Financial risk factors” to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, human and system errors or from external
events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests
with every function at departmental levels. Key functions in the Group
are guided by their standard operating procedures, limits of authority
and reporting framework. Management will identify and assess key
operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk response can be
taken.

Market risk

Performance of the Group's business will be affected by various market
factors in Hong Kong, including but not limited to economic conditions
and the overall property market conditions in Hong Kong. A downturn in
the economy and/or property market in Hong Kong may result not only
in a decline in the number of real estate transactions, which may limit the
growth of the Group’s mortgage loan portfolio, but also a decline in the
value of the underlying properties in respect of the Group’s mortgage
loans, which may increase the risk of impairment of the Group's
mortgage loan portfolio. The Group has implemented polices to carry out
continuous monitoring of the property market and the collateral value of
the underlying mortgage loan portfolio so that appropriate risk response
can be taken.
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Reputational risk

The Group maintains a strong market position in the money lending
business market in Hong Kong. One of the keys to its success is its
reputation and recognition of the brand “GICL". Maintaining and
promoting brand and reputation will depend on the Group’s marketing
efforts and service quality. If existing or potential customers lose
confidence in “GICL", or in the industry in general, because of negative
publicity, the Group's performance may be negatively impacted. To
safeguard and manage the brand, the Group strives to uphold its brand
value, corporate image, and maintain high business ethics.

Risk management

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk management
procedures to identify and control various types of risk within the
organisation and the external environment with active management
participation and effective internal control procedures in the best interest
of the Group and its shareholders. Details of its risk management system
are elaborated on pages 34 to 36 under section “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group maintains strong and close relationships with its employees
and customers and has enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and
business partners so as to ensure sustainable development.

The Group regards employees as one of the most valuable assets of the
Group and regards the personal development of its employees as highly
important. The Group (i) regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard; (i) provides a safe working environment to its employees; and
(i) provides continuous training support to its employees in order to
drive their personal development and improve their knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work.

The Group maintains close relationship with customers to fulfill their
immediate and long-term financing needs. The Group has ongoing
communication with customers through various channels, such as the
Group's website, telephone, direct mail, marketing materials and social
media.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 23 full-time employees
(2016: 29). The total employee benefit expenses (including directors’
emoluments) of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016 were approximately HK$11.9 million and approximately HK$12.9
million, respectively. The remuneration of its employees included salaries,
overtime allowance, commission and year end discretionary bonuses.
The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on current market
trend, individual performance and experience and conduct performance
appraisals on an annual basis.

EXCHANGE RATES AND HEDGES

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had an investment in a
convertible promissory note denominated in RMB which carrying value of
RMB200 million, which were exposed to foreign currency translation risk.
The currency exposure arising from such convertible promissory note was
managed primarily through a loan from the ultimate holding company
denominated in the same foreign currency. The convertible promissory
note and the loan from the ultimate holding company have been fully
repaid during the year.

Other than the investment in the convertible promissory note, the
business activities of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, save as the potential Hong Kong profits tax
exposure disclosed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements of
the annual report, the Group had no other material contingent liabilities
(2016: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, certain properties mortgaged to a subsidiary
of the Group by its respective customers were pledged to secure
certain loan facilities granted to the Group. These properties were
mortgaged to the Group for securing loans receivable with net book
value of approximately HK$80.0 million (2016: HK$446.2 million). As at
31 December 2017, certain loans receivable and bank accounts of a
subsidiary of the Group with carrying value of approximately HK$90.9
million (2016: Nil) and HK$4.8 million (2016: Nil), respectively, were
charged to a bank to secure against a loan facility granted to the Group.
Those loan facilities granted to the Group were for the expansion of the
Group's mortgage business.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wang Yao (E ), aged 34, is the chairman and chief executive of
the Company and was appointed as Director on 20 January 2014 and
designated as an executive Director on 24 July 2014. Ms. Wang is a
co-founder of the Group and is responsible for the overall management
of the money lending business as well as strategic planning and
development of the Group. In particular, she is responsible for developing
the Group's overall business model and product portfolio as well as
formulating its advertising and marketing strategy. Ms. Wang graduated
from Macquarie University in Australia with a double bachelor’s degree
in applied finance and commerce accounting in November 2006 and a
master of applied finance, also from Macquarie University, in July 2007. Ms.
Wang is the daughter of Ms. Jin.

Ms. Jin Xiaoqin (£ B 2), aged 61, was appointed as Director on 9 April
2014 and designated as an executive Director on 24 July 2014. Ms. Jin is a
co-founder of the Group and an experienced property investor. Between
July 2006 and July 2008 she was the director of a privately held company
in Hong Kong which, through its subsidiaries, was engaged in motorcycle
manufacturing and trading business in the PRC. She is responsible for
the overall management of the Group'’s business and operations and
participating in monitoring of the Group’s treasury functions, including
the allocation of funds for the purpose of running the Group’s daily
business operation. Ms. Jin is the mother of Ms. Wang.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen (R X), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 22 November
2014. She has about 29 years of experience in professional accounting
and corporate finance in Hong Kong, the PRC, the United States and
Europe. Dr. Ng is a practicing certified public accountant in Hong
Kong, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom, and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. She is the director of Cosmos CPA Limited and Managing
Partner of Hong Kong Asset Management Limited. She received
her Doctor of Business Administration Degree from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, Juris Doctor Degree from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong, Master of Laws Degree in Corporate and Financial Laws
from The University of Hong Kong, Master of Business Administration
Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Master of Professional
Accounting Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
Master of Science in Global Finance from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology and Leonard N. Stern School of Business of New
York University. Dr. Ng is currently an independent non-executive director
of eSun Holdings Limited (stock code: 571) and Lion Rock Group Limited
(formerly known as “1010 Printing Group Limited”) (stock code: 1127),
all being listed companies in Hong Kong. She is also a non-executive
director of Precision Tsugami (China) Corporation Limited (stock code:
1651), which is a listed company in Hong Kong. She was an independent
non-executive director of Goldin Properties Holdings Limited (which was
previously listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and delisted
on 18 August 2017) from February 2004 to August 2017.

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis (B {£f#), aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 22 November
2014. Mr. Tang was called to the Bar of Hong Kong in the High Court
of Hong Kong in December 2001 and since then has been a practising
barrister and a member of the Hong Kong Bar Association. Mr. Tang
graduated from the University of Toronto in June 1998 with a bachelor
of applied science major in computer engineering. He obtained the
postgraduate diploma in English and Hong Kong law from Manchester
Metropolitan University in July 2000 and the postgraduate certificate
in laws from The University of Hong Kong in June 2001. He was also an
independent non-executive director of PanAsialum Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 2078), which is a listed company in Hong Kong, from
21 March 2016 to 20 March 2017.

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick (3Z#83), aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 January 2016.
Mr. Man is currently the managing director of the corporate finance
department of VMS Securities Limited. Mr. Man has over 10 years of
experience in the corporate finance field. Mr. Man obtained a Bachelor's
Degree of Business Administration from Simon Fraser University, Canada
in October 1993. He has been an associate member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since January 2000 and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since September
2003.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yip Lee Ying (E#]Z), aged 34, joined the Group in February 2016
as chief financial officer and has also been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Yip is principally responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial management, internal control, company secretarial
and corporate finance matters. Ms. Yip has over 10 years of experience in
professional accounting and financial advisory services. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. Yip has worked at Deloitte Hong Kong from February
2007 to January 2016 and her last position held was Associate Director at
Deloitte Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited. Ms. Yip became a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in September 2010
She holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and Finance
and a Master of Commerce degree in Funds Management from the
University of New South Wales.

Ms. Chan Mei Chun ( BR 3£ ¥ ), aged 39, joined the Group in February

2009 as senior relationship manager and is responsible for management
of customer relationships.
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Corporate Governance Report

EERRE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Relevant Period”).
The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements
of its business and Shareholders to enable them to evaluate how the
principles of corporate governance have been applied. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise a high quality Board,
sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
Shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with the code provisions as
set out under the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. During the Relevant
Period, the Company has complied with the Code Provisions except for
the following deviation:

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1, the role of chairman and the chief
executive should be segregated and should not be performed by the
same individual. However, the Company does not have a separate
chairman and chief executive and Ms. Wang Yao currently performs these
two roles. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman
and chief executive in the same position has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board considers
that the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement will
not be impaired and this structure will enable the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and effectively. The Board will continue to
review and consider splitting the roles of chairman of the Board and chief
executive of the Company at a time when it is appropriate and suitable
by taking into account the circumstances of the Group as a whole.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.7 of the Code, independent non-executive
directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen and
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis, the independent non-executive Directors, did not
attend the annual general meeting ("AGM") held on 1 June 2017 due to
other commitments on the date of the AGM.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of the Board
should attend the AGM. Ms. Wang Yao, the chairman of the Board, was
absent from the Company’s AGM held on 1 June 2017 due to other
business commitments. Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick, an independent non-
executive Director chaired the AGM pursuant to the Articles of Association
of the Company (the "Articles”) and was available to answer questions.

In light of this situation, the Directors consider that the aforementioned
does not have any material impact on the corporate governance of the
Company during the Relevant Period.
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The Directors will carry out a regular review on the Company's corporate
governance policies and will propose any amendment, if necessary, to
ensure compliance with the Code Provisions from time to time.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board currently comprises five Directors, being two executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, with a variety
and a balance of skills and experience in accounting, business, finance,
investment and legal profession. The current composition of the Board is

EEBETHRT AR N EE AR - URA
T B RS E] - AFER B PN A RN ST
B o

EEE

EEENE

EXgRAAREFENX  IMERTEER
=—REUFTES - WERASRENHER
Mk AEEe - RERE  BFE - 2R RERAE
EX  EZQRAIKEIHWT ¢

as follows:

Directors Membership of Board Committee(s)
= ESZESHERK
Executive Directors:
HITES
Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman) Chairman of the Nomination Committee
TR (FE) REEEGTRE
Member of the Remuneration Committee
HFMEEgKE
Ms. Jin Xiaogin
eHEEL L
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen Chairman of the Audit Committee
RENEL EREEGTRE
Member of the Remuneration Committee
HEEgKE
Member of the Nomination Committee
REEEGKE
Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
SRR EE FEEEEFE
Member of the Audit Committee
ERELZEGKE
Member of the Nomination Committee
REBEEGKE
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis Member of the Audit Committee
EEREE BEREEGKE
Member of the Remuneration Committee
HFNEEGKE
Member of the Nomination Committee
REBEEGKE
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Save for Ms. Wang Yao who is the daughter of Ms. Jin Xiaogin and Ms.
Jin Xiaogin who is the mother of Ms. Wang Yao, the Directors have no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

The Code Provisions require directors to disclose to the issuer the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and
other significant commitments as well as the nature of such companies
or organisations and the time involved in such offices. Each Director
has agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely
manner.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors of
a listed issuer must include at least three independent non-executive
directors. In addition, pursuant to Rules 3.10A and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules, every listed issuer is required to have such number of independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board, and
at least one of whom must have appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. Dr. Ng Lai
Man, Carmen who is a practicing certified public accountant in Hong
Kong, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, is regarded as an appropriate person to fulfill this requirement.
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The Board meets regularly at least four times a year. During the year, the
Board has held four board meetings, and the annual general meeting of
the Company was held on 1 June 2017. The attendance of each Director
at these meetings are stated as follows:

Members of the Board

EZENE

Executive Directors:

HITES

Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive of the Board)
ITRAT(BEFEF/EREH)

Ms. Jin Xiaogin

THEELL

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

REXEL

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick

MRS S

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

FEEmEE

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable to stakeholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among other
things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review corporate and
financial policies and the oversight of the management of the Group's
business and affairs.

The management, consisting of the executive Directors along with other
senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing the
strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and
conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors
and senior executives meet regularly to review the performance of the
businesses of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and
make financial and operational decisions. The Board also gives clear
directions as to their powers of management including circumstances
where management should report back, and will review the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate
to the needs of the Group.

24
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All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of
the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

In compliance with Code Provision A.6.5, the Group will arrange for,
and provide funds for, all the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to help them refresh their knowledge, skills
and understanding of the Group and its business or to update their skills
and knowledge on the latest development or changes in the relevant
statutes, the Listing Rules and corporate governance practices. The
Company will also update the Directors of any material changes in the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices from time to time.

During the year, all the Directors have participated in continuous
professional development, by attending external training or seminars,
attending in-house training and/or reading materials on various topics
covering regulations, corporate governance, finance and business, to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, which ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Directors
have provided records of training to the Company.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The terms of reference of Nomination Committee include a nomination
procedure specifying the process and criteria for selection and
recommendation of candidates for directorships of the Company.

Each of our executive Directors, has entered into a service agreement
with the Company regarding the appointment as an executive Director
for a term of one year and shall be subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meetings in accordance with the Articles,
unless terminated by not less than six months written notice or otherwise
in accordance with the service agreement.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors, has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years and shall
be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings in accordance with the Articles, unless otherwise terminated
in accordance with the relevant letter of appointment. The annual
remuneration payable by the Company to each of our independent
non-executive Directors is HK$240,000 according to the respective letter
of appointment.
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Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles, the Directors shall have power at
any time and from time to time to appoint any person to be a Director,
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors.
Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting.

Furthermore, pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, at each annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.
Every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (the “Company’s Code”)
regarding securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standards set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries, the Company confirms that all the Directors have complied
with the required standards as stated in the Model Code and the
Company’s Code throughout the Relevant Period.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and are
available to Shareholders upon request.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the Company was
established on 22 November 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of
the Code Provisions as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst other
things:

() to propose the appointment or removal of the external auditors and
the effectiveness of the audit process;

(i) to discuss with the external auditor on the nature and scope of the
audit work prior to commencement of the audit work;

(i) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
procedures;

(iv) to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Group, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

(v) to review the Company’s financial information and disclosure
thereof, and to consider any significant or unusual items that are, or
may need to be, reflected in the reports and accounts;

(vi) to review and supervise the Group’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems and their implementation;
and

(vii) to review the arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
financial reporting improprieties.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee
consisted of Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick and
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis, all of whom are independent non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr. Ng Lai Man,
Carmen who holds the appropriate professional qualifications as required
under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, two meetings of the
Audit Committee were held (with the attendance of the Company'’s
external auditor in compliance with the Code Provisions and the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference), and all members had attended these
meetings with their respective record of attendance as follows:

Members of the Audit Committee

BEREEERE

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen (Chairman of Audit Committee)
REXBL(FEZESTE)

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick

SORAEE

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

EEREE
During the year, the Audit Committee has performed the following work:

1. Reviewed the annual report and the annual results announcement
for the year ended 31 December 2016, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

2. Reviewed the interim report and the interim results announcement
for the six months ended 30 June 2017, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

3. considered and recommended to the Board the auditors’ fee
and the re-appointment of the Company’s independent external
auditor; and

4. reviewed the internal control review report prepared by Baker Tilly

Hong Kong Risk Assurance Limited ("BTHKRA”") and the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management system of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Auditor’s remuneration

The Audit Committee of our Company is responsible for considering
the appointment and re-election of our Company’s external auditor and
reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the external auditor,
including whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect to our Company. PricewaterhouseCoopers is the
external auditor of the Company. For the year ended 31 December 2017,
the external auditor received the following remuneration for audit and
non-audit services provided to the Group:

EEER®RE (A)

¥ B0 B 69 357 A
ARAREZZER@ARERZENEFREIAL
BISNEBAZELED - A R EAZSN S B ED B 1T HVE (A
BB  BERAMIFERRESTERAR
REXBEEATMEE - BERBUKEGTANSE
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A=ZT—RLEFE - SNSRI E TR K IE
BZIR T ASEMEERBEIT -

HK$’000
TR

Audit services BRI
Non-audit services IEEBAIZ RS
Interim review services o BR R R AR TS
Taxation services SR
Total BET

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee (the "Remuneration Committee”) of the
Company was established on 22 November 2014 with written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the Code Provisions as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include, amongst
other things:

() to make recommendations to the Board on our policy and structure
for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(i) toreview and approve management's remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

(i) to consider and make recommendations to our Board on the
remuneration packages and overall benefits paid to our Directors
and senior management;

(iv) to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment; and
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(v) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee
consisted of one executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors: Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick, Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen,
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis and Ms. Wang Yao. The chairman of the
Remuneration Committee was Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, one meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held to review the policy and structure
of the remuneration of Directors and senior management and their
respective remuneration packages. All members had attended the
meeting with their respective record of attendance as follows:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

FMESERE

Independent Non-executive Directors:

BYFBITES !

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick (Chairman of Remuneration Committee)
MBS E(FNEE 2T E)

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

REXEL

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

EEREE

Executive Director:
BITES:

Ms. Wang Yao
FERL

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Code Provisions, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (as described under the section
"Directors and Senior Management”) by band for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out below:

Remuneration band

FIER

HKS$ 1 to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the
Company was established on 22 November 2014 with written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the Code Provisions as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, amongst other
things:

(0

(i)

(iv)

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and to
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement our corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorship;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

to consider and make recommendations to the Board regarding the
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee
consisted of one executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors: Ms. Wang Yao, Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, Mr. Man Yiu
Kwong, Nick and Mr. Tang, Warren Louis. The chairman of the Nomination
Committee is Ms. Wang Yao.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, one meeting of the
Nomination Committee was held and all members had attended the
meeting with their respective record of attendance as follows:

Members of the Nomination Committee

REZEEERE

Executive Director:
HITES
Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman of Nomination Committee)

IBLT(EEZEELE)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

REXEL

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick

ORAEE

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

EEmEE

During the year, the Nomination Committee has performed the following
work:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. discussed and recommended to the Board the re-appointment of
Directors; and

3. reviewed and assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors of the Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY

With a view to enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance,
the Board should include a balanced composition of executive and
non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
so that there is a strong independence element on the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgment.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy with measurable
objectives. The Nomination Committee evaluates the balance and blend
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives of the Board. Selection
of candidates is based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to age, cultural and educational background, professional
and industry experience, skills, knowledge, ethnicity and other qualities
essential to the Company’s business, and merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board will review such
measurable objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those objectives.

Corporate governance function
The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the collective
responsibility of Directors and their corporate governance duties include:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code Provisions and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the year, the Board has performed the corporate governance
duties in accordance with its terms of reference.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely manner in
accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the timeframe
stipulated in Rule 13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules. All Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Group on a going concern basis, with supporting assumptions or
qualifications as necessary, for each financial period which give a true
and fair view of the Group's financial affairs. The Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditors about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 62 to 68 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing
basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

During the year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted
review of both design and implementation effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, covering
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions are adequate. In this
respect, the Audit Committee communicates any material issues to the
Board.

During the year, the Group appointed BTHKRA to independently perform
internal control review of the Group's internal control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were reported to
the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover, improvements in internal
control measures as recommended by BTHKRA to enhance the internal
control systems of the Group were adopted by the Board. No significant
area of concern that may affect the financial, operational, compliance,
control and risk management of the Group has been identified.
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The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The Board has the overall
responsibility to maintain the adequacies of resources, staff qualifications
and experience training programs and budget of accounting and
financial reporting function. Based on the findings and recommendations
of BTHKRA, reports from the Group’s management as well as the
comments of the Audit Committee, and the Board considered the
internal control and risk management systems effective and adequate.

Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group has established its enterprise risk management framework
in 2016. While the Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that
sound and effective internal controls are maintained, management is
responsible for designing and implementing an internal control system
to manage all kinds of risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks are
identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. The Group's risk
management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk Management
— Integrated Framework, which allows the Board and management to
manage the risks of the Group effectively. The Board receives regular
reports through the Audit Committee that oversights risk management
and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks

The principal risks and relevant measures taken by the Group is set out on
pages 15 to 16 under the section “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report.

Our Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate governance
structure with operational management and controls performed by
operations management, coupled with risk management monitoring
carried out by the finance team and independent internal audit
outsourced to and conducted by BTHKRA. The Group maintains a risk
register to keep track of all identified major risks of the Group. The risk
register provides the Board, the Audit Committee, and management
with a profile of its major risks and records management's action taken to
mitigate the relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually based
on its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group.
The risk register is updated by management as the risk owners with
addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if applicable, at least
annually, after the annual risk evaluation has been performed. This review
process can ensure that the Group proactively manages the risks faced by
it in the sense that all risk owners have access to the risk register and are
aware of and alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so that they
can take follow-up action in an efficient manner.
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Risk management activities of the Group are performed by management
on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of the risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic management
meeting is held to update the progress of risk monitoring efforts.
Management is committed to ensure that risk management forms part of
the daily business operation processes in order to align risk management
with corporate goals in an effective manner.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and are of the view
that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint external independent
professionals to perform internal audit function for the Group in order to
meet its needs. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at least
annually the need for an internal audit function.

Inside Information

The Company has set up an information disclosure policy (the “Disclosure
Policy”) to ensure that the Company shall be in strict compliance with
the disclosure obligation of inside information, that inside information
remains confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such information
is efficiently and consistently made. The Company acknowledges its
obligations under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules and the principles of
inside information as set forth in the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
The Disclosure Policy stipulated responsibilities, guidelines and logistics in
the assessment, approval and dissemination of inside information, strictly
prohibited unauthorised use of confidential information and established
procedures for responding to external enquires or rumours.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yip Lee Ying was appointed by the Board as the Company Secretary
of the Company in April 2016 and she is also the chief financial officer of
the Group. The Company Secretary supports the Chairman in promoting
the highest standards of corporate governance and facilitates the
effective functioning of the Board and its committees. All Directors
have direct access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman on board governance
matters, and is responsible for ensuring that board procedures are
followed and for facilitating timely and appropriate information flows
among directors. Ms. Yip has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training on review of Listing Rules and other compliance
requirements during the year.

The biography of the Company Secretary is set out under the section
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company aims to promote and maintain effective communications
with Shareholders and investors (both individuals and institutions) to
ensure that the Group's information is disseminated to Shareholders and
potential investors in a timely manner and enable them to have a clear
assessment of the enterprise performance.

Extensive information on the Group’s activities and financial position
will be disclosed in the annual reports, interim reports, announcements,
circulars and other corporate communications which will be sent to
Shareholders and/or published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.gic.com.hk).

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

General Meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. The Chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, or in their absence, their
duly appointed delegates are available to answer questions at the
Shareholders’ meetings. The auditor of the Company is also invited to
attend the Company’s annual general meeting ("AGM") and is available
to assist the Directors in addressing queries from Shareholders relating
to the conduct of the audit and the preparation and contents of the
Independent Auditor’s Report. Separate resolutions are proposed at
Shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual directors.

Notice of the AGM together with related papers are sent to the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the meeting, setting
out details of each proposed resolution, voting procedures and other
relevant information. All votes of Shareholders at the general meeting
will be decided by poll, where appropriate, in accordance with Article
13.7. The Chairman will explain such rights and procedures during the
AGM before voting on the resolutions. An independent scrutineer will be
appointed to count the votes and the poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after the AGM.
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Shareholders can make a requisition to convene an extraordinary general
meeting ("EGM”) pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles. The procedures
for the Shareholders to convene an EGM are as follows:

1. Any two or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist”) holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings shall have the right, by written notice, to require
an EGM to be called by the directors for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition.

2. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board of the
Company signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
following address:

Principal place of business of the Company

Address: Unit 01, 23/F, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong

3. If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting within 21
days of such deposit, the Requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them may do so in the same manner which shall be held no later
than the day which falls three months after the expiration of the
said twenty-one day period, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the Requisitionist as a result of the failure of the directors shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to direct enquiries to the
Company

For matters in relation to the Board, Shareholders can contact the
Company at the following:

Address: Unit 01, 23/F, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central,

Hong Kong
Email:  info@gic.com.hk
Tel: (852) 21110998

Fax: (852) 21110819

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and
registration, change of name or address, loss of share certificates or
dividend warrants, the registered Shareholders can contact:

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 28108185
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Relevant Period, there has been no change in the Company'’s
constitutional documents.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals
at Shareholders’ meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her proposal (the
“Proposal”) together with his/her detailed contact information at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 01, 23/F,
World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong in the same
manner as set out above.

The request will be verified by the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Board will be asked to include the Proposal in the agenda for
the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration of
the Proposal raised by the Shareholder concerned at the general meeting
varies according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(@) Atleast 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires approval
by way of a special resolution of the Company in an EGM or
resolution of the Company in an AGM.

(b) Atleast 14 days' notice in writing if the Proposal requires approval in
any other EGM.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Global International Credit Group Limited (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”)) is pleased to issue the Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") Report for the year ended 31 December 2017
("FY2017") which outlines its policies and practices in four aspects, namely
environmental protection, human resources, operating practice and
community involvement, with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide (the
"ESG Guide") as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) for disclosures.

As a responsible and caring corporate citizen, the Group upholds the
principle that good business practices and corporate social responsibility
are vital for the sustainability of its success. The Board is responsible for
the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. The Group has established an
ESG working team to engage the management and employees across
all functions in order to identify relevant ESG issues and to assess their
materiality to the Group’s business as well as the Company’s stakeholders,
through reviewing our operations and internal discussions. The Group
also recognizes its responsibility to be accountable to all its stakeholders,
including clients, potential investors and shareholders, employees, non-
governmental organizations (NGOs) and local community. Understanding
the needs and expectations of the stakeholders is the key to the Group's
success. As each stakeholder requires a different engagement approach,
the Group has established a tailor-made communication method, in
order to better meet each stakeholder’s expectations.

Scope of the Report
Unless otherwise stated, this report covers the Group’s head office and all
the operating subsidiaries of the Group.

For this year, the material ESG issues are those which have or may have a
significant impact on:

The Hong Kong mortgage loan market;
The environment or sociality now or in the future;
Our financial performance or operations; and/or

Our stakeholders assessment, decisions and actions.

Feedback

This report is designed to allow our stakeholders and the public to have
a more comprehensive and profound understanding of the Group'’s
corporate social responsibility and culture. We welcome feedback and
comments on to this report and its contents which will lead us to create
further common value. Please feel free to provide your comments by
email to info@gic.com.hk.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively strives to better understand our stakeholders and
engage them to ensure that improvements are implemented to our
products and services. We strongly believe that our stakeholders would
play a crucial role for sustaining the success of our business in the

challenging market.

Stakeholders

MEERAAL

Possible concerned issues

BEMBESE

i%iﬁ N ?:I:%.& E/zﬁiﬁ = (nla)

HEMFIZSHEBAA L

REEEHE ) E o 7 BNEAERA LA
MEER - RBRPIER MRS A P E - 3
RE - FIEERA T HERBR MBI m 55
BRERYTEHDEEEHEENAES -

Communication and responses

BB O

HKEx

BEABARE
Government
B

Shareholders/
Investors

BERREE

Media & Public
BEFAR

Customers

5F

Employees

(==

Community

HE

Compliance of listing rules, timely and accurate
announcements.

BT EMRA - R ERE TR RS

Compliance of laws and regulations, preventing tax
evasion, and social welfare.

EPERER - IR LR 2 & T

Corporate governance system, business strategies
and performance, investment returns.

EEREAHE - FHRBERRR - REDR

Corporate governance, environmental protection,
human right.

TEER  RIBERE - A

Quality of loan services, repayment terms,
handling time, reasonable interest costs, privacy
protection

FRBEER - BRI - RIERHE - 232
,u\ﬁJZK FLRRRIE

Rights and benefits, employee compensation,
training and development, work hours, working
environment.

RN R A8 A - 12 B RN -
A TERIE

IR - TR

Community environment, employment and
community development, social welfare.

HERIRR - BREIHEER  HERA

Meetings, training, workshops, programs, website
updates and announcements

g3 5 Mg 58 MUERRAE

Interaction and visits, government inspections, tax
returns and other information

BFRFED - BAGRE - AT EHRREATY

Organizing and participating in seminars,
interviews, shareholders’ meetings, financial
reports or operation reports for investors, media
and analysts

EEEINES ,\t’ﬁxﬁ% B M A B8
WE - Sk WRKE - RRERETE
BERLE ﬁi

Issue of newsletters on the Group's website
RE BB BB

After-sales services

BRI

Trainings, interviews for employees, issuing
employee handbooks, internal memos,
employee suggestion boxes

B EEEEITE - EWE T - AEE
BTk RUBEERM

Developing community activities, employee
voluntary activities and community welfare
subsidies and donations.

MRS - BRESRUEEN AR B RN A
B KRR
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R - ERERHRE (E)

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to leading by example, inspiring others to strive
for environmental sustainability, and minimizing our environmental
impacts from operations. We have implemented eco-friendly measures to
reduce carbon footprint in our business operations. During FY2017, there
was no material non-compliance issue with relevant laws and regulations
related to the environment.

Emission

As a provider of money lending services, the Group’s operation does
not have material impacts on the environment in relation to pollutant
emissions. Nevertheless, the Group still indirectly generates greenhouse
gas ("GHG") emission through our consumption of electricity and
production of paper waste at the Group’s headquarter. Several measures
to reduce the Group’s GHG emissions have been implemented to
demonstrate the Group's determination of maintaining environmental
sustainability. Those measures included promoting paperless office by
usage of tablets, encouraging double-sided printing, and encouraging
employees to switch off all idle appliances.

During FY2017, the Group’s total GHG emissions was approximately
35.7 tonnes (FY2016: 30.2 tonnes) and the total GHG emission per
average employee was 1.37 tonnes (FY2016: 0.98 tonne). The increase in
GHG emission was mainly due to the longer working hours with fewer
employees when compared to FY2016, equipment deterioration and the
decrease in paper waste collected from recycle company.

IRIBIRE

REBBANASIER  BEEM AR RRITAF
BERB)  SEEYRBERNTENER
K - ZMERRFEER - LWRIEEBEENIRE
e RZFT—tFPRFE  BETAEREER
SRR A RAERDER ORI EF o

B

EREFIRGHIER - BUSRYMPNRmE - A&
B2 EHREWEBEATE - Al - AEED
ERHEEHERAENMELEAMEEELSR
ZRE(DAZERE]) - XAEEDETZHEBDAN
SEREREIRNEE - WEBRAKERTR
BAIRHEERADRD - ZFHEHBREERTIRE
fi - IRIGEMAM D - ZEEESIE KR EEES R
FRFTEREE:: -

RZZB—+FHHREE @ AEBENEEREBEE
MEXN A TRAM(ZE—RNEMRFE 3024
WE)  EEAMAREREBHMERIIVAE(Z
T NEHHEE  098AME) - BEREHHE
EINDEFEARBE - NFHRFEMS @ &
BAZRDUBRTIEBNE » REECA LB A
R B UL EE AR B E R D PR

FY2017 FY2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
BEREE B
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) MEAEREN(HEE2)

— Electricity consumption (in tonnes) —FEEE (LA 30.5 275
Other indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3) B R E R e (#E3)

— Disposal of paper waste (in tonnes) —EIRERE (LAREERT) 5.2 2.7
Total GHG emissions (in tonnes) BERBHEREE (IAMEE) 35.7 302
Average number of employees FHREEHE 26 37
GHG emissions per average employee EEAYBEREHEKRE

(in tonnes) (A AWERT) 1.37 0.97
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Waste Management

The Group's operations do not produce any hazardous waste, which
includes but not limited to chemical wastes, clinical wastes and
hazardous chemicals. The non-hazardous waste produced by the Group
was mainly paper waste. Measures for reducing and recycling the waste
were put in place. We encourage double-sided printing, as well as reuse
of single side printed paper. A recycling company was engaged to collect
and recycle our paper waste regularly. In FY2017, approximately 28% of
our paper waste was recycled (FY2016: 69%), the decrease in recycled
percentage was due to the impact from the prohibition of importing
unsorted waste paper in China implemented during the year. To further
reduce the Group's non-hazardous waste, we have also purchased some
electronic tablets so as to facilitate usage of electronic document and
promote paperless office.

Rk - HERERHRE (B)

B EE

AEENEEY TELEREERY(BEED
RIMCBREF  BEEVMEBEE(ENE) - K
SEELHNEZTEY T ERRER - B MElkEE
WEERKC B - RMISBEmIIE - URE
EEREmMINNER - RFICZE —FEKRL
AEHIRE R B R FIER - R—F—+F
IBRFE - BB 2% ERBARIK(ZF
—NEFMBEE  69%) - BB TRER
FAPEEREILRDERAEOMTE - /K
E—FRIREENEEEY  LATCEAS
TFIRER - BBEFCSUENF B L HEEER

W o

FY2017 FY2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

MERFE MEE

Paper waste (in kg) B (LA 5D 936 567
Average number of employees FHEEHE 26 31
Paper waste per average employee (in kg) EEAYEERE(LLAFE) 36.0 183

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to upholding high environmental standards
in order to promote environmental friendliness. As a provider of money
lending services, the Group strives to minimise environmental impact by
reducing energy and paper consumption and encouraging recycle of
office supplies and other materials.

Energy Consumption

The electricity consumed by the Group’s head office was the largest
contributor to the greenhouse gas footprint. To reduce the Group'’s
carbon and energy footprints, the Group has posted some energy
conservation reminders in place. Computers and office lights are switched
off during non-business hours to minimize light pollution and reduce
energy consumption. Although the average working hours increased due
to fewer employees in FY2017 when compared to FY2016, leading to an
increase in the total electricity consumption, our energy conservation
efforts have helped us keep the increase to approximately 119%.

EIRF A

REBEMANETRRFIEE  URERE - A&
B AERREHHER - HRER DR kA
SORRMA NS BERBARAAmRMEMY S
BREMMERNTERERE -

&b 5

BeJ) \/ﬁ%%
AEERTNENEREESALBENREETRE
REN o BB AR EE AR MR T - REED
RBELE TIREE TEBENER - JEARERAS
RARE I MR ENE - FEULRUIE 5 R RR
BERERE - BEBR T ARFHPRFEMS - =
TLFUBFEREHE R  EHFHIHE
EF - ETERARFEE RN - AT A RERIN
ETREHE I - THBISAMERIE 1% A -
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R - ERERHRE (E)

Electricity consumption (in kWh) HEBE(LUTRE)
Average number of employees FHEEHE

Electricity consumption per average
employee (in kWh)

Paper Usage

Efficiency in usage of paper has been promoted and communicated to
our employees. Some tablets were purchased to encourage reduction
of usage of paper. The single-sided printings were collected for reuse.
By these measures, the paper usage has reduced by approximately 18%
when compared with last year.

EEAGHEER (LT REKEG)

FY2017 FY2016
—E—tF T 5F
R RITE
38,560 34,863

26 31

1,483 1,125

A

BB B AR BENESHEEETRMANE
8 o HMMEBARTFEIREMUR DB - mE
P ENR AR RS AU E A - BRI 4
FHEREF THL18% °

FY2017 FY2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

MBFE MFE

Paper usage (in kg) AEEADTE) 1,503 1824

Average number of employees FHEEHR 26 31

Paper usage per average employee (in kg) EEAGRAEKE (LA FE) 57.8 588
Water Consumption and Packaging Materials FXKEREEME

As the Group's operations mainly focus on providing financial services to
customers, no water consumption or packaging material consumption
can be identified as material issue relevant to the Group's operations.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of our business, the Group does not have any direct
and significant impacts on the environment and natural resources in the
course of its operation. By taking the above-mentioned green initiatives,
the Group is committed to doing our part to mitigate our environmental
impact and acting in a manner that is both environmentally and socially
responsible.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

With the Group’s efforts in minimizing its impacts on the environment,
the Group has successfully achieved the following:

Aspects Results
FHE HR

GHG emissions

Rk - HERERHRE (B)

AEBRZROBRRZEMTENSE S - B
FERATRCR

Controlled the increase in GHG emissions to approximately 18%

BERBETN R = RAEBE R E IR IR RS 23 18% L A

Waste production

R R E (0] 4k 49289 H) BE 4%

Energy consumption

BERERE

Paper usage

FR#R HRRERD418%

The Company is also delighted to be awarded as the Silver Member
of WWF-Hong Kong Corporate Membership Programme 2017/2018
as an acknowledgement to our continuous support to environmental
conservation.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group regards employees as one of the most valuable assets of
the Group and regards the personal development of its employees as
highly important. The Group has a set of HR management policies and
procedures in place to set out the Group's standard of staff recruitment,
remuneration, work periods, rest periods as well as termination of
employment and compensation matters. The Group strictly complies
with the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations which cover
all employment protection and benefits.

Recycled approximately 28% of our paper waste

Controlled the increase in energy consumption to approximately 11%

R BEIRBFEE IR IRIESI B 1%L R

Reduced total paper usage by approximately 18%

AT IREEIE0172018F R EARELEE B
NE - ARG BHEINTIRSE  URERME
BYHRRNE N -

ANER

AEEREERASEREENEEZ— RE
EREEMEAER - AREHFI —EANER
EERRMEF  EFHIAKEEHESR
B HB - XEE - RERERR LR EEE
EEHER - AEBBRRETREMEGRFERE
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485 R | E AR ST ENIROIA R E b AR REAR
KB
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Rk - HERER®RE (E)

Employment

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 23 full-time employees
(2016: 29) which are all located in Hong Kong. The Group has a diverse
workforce in terms of gender and age, generating creative opinions and
different level of capabilities. The following table sets forth the number
and breakdown of our full-time employees as at 31 December 2017:

=%
RZEBE—tF+A=+—08 ' ~XEEEA23E
FRES (T —RF : 29%)  HEHTENE
B AEBETRMERFRNZTILETHE
B SETIREERAEMNRRE  TAEETRRE
ERgEH - TREIBRMR=_ZE—LF+=A
=T—HNRESHE RPE -

Age 30

or below

=ETBIAUT

Male 2
S

Female 1
7

Total 3
#Et

Remunerations of the employees of the Group are determined with
reference to the prevailing market standard as well as the competency,
qualifications and experience of individual employees. Discretionary
bonuses based on financial results of the Group as well as individual
performance will be paid to the employees as recognition of their
contribution to the Group annually. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package and promotion opportunities of employees and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard in
order to retain talents. To increase the employees’ sense of belonging,
the Group also offer various welfare incentives to employees, including
insurance schemes, over-time allowance, various paid leaves and holiday
gifts.

The Group adopts equal employment opportunity policies and treats
all the employees equally, and their employment, remuneration and
promotion will not be affected by their social identities such as ethnicity,
race, nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political faction
and marital status.
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Age 31
to 40 Above 40
=+-Em+tE mHENE
4 4 10
8 4 13
12 8 23

AEEREEHMISERETISRENRER B
THRESN - BEREHRMETE - ARERREE
M EEREARREFREBDIKBISIEA -
UEREREHANEENER - AKETE SRR
BNFMEFEAREHE  UABEBASTMIED
NEMGRENVERE - BERARENRE
B AEBETTAEBIRMHZ RGN RE - BRER
BRatEl - IIDERL - REAFEHNEMHEEMS

AEERAFERXRBRERR A TFHF 2R
BE  MEENER  FMESHATEXIRSE
MHESNMTE  WRK Bk B% %
Al R R MERUA R MBI o



v

BIREEEEAERLT 2017 FIR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy working
environment to its employees, and encourages them to achieve a
balance between work and a healthy life. Air purifiers are placed in the
workplace to improve air circulation. We take a systematic approach
to safeguard the health and safety of our employee by reducing the
likelihood of safety risks occurrence in the office so we aim at training
employee’s responsiveness to emergencies. During FY2017, there was no
instance of injury reported within our Group. The Group provides medical
insurance for employees and the coverage of insurance includes dental
services and out-patient fees. The Group complies with the relevant
occupational health and safety laws and regulations.

Training and Development

The Group encourages employees to participate in on-the-job
training and continuing education to create opportunities for career
development.

In order to help employees acclimatise to the volatile business
environment, the Group provides continuous updates in relation to
market and industry trends as well as updates on relevant regulations
to its employees. In addition, the Group also encourages continuous
personal development of its employees by implementing an educational
reimbursement program.

The Group also invites directors and senior management to attend
training in relation to updates on the Listing Rules, corporate governance,
relevant laws and regulations so as to maintain sustainable professional
development and refresh their knowledge.

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to comply, with the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and associated guidelines. Every
act of employment is subject to a stringent internal review process
that involves a well-defined monitoring procedure designed to verify a
candidate’s personal information in order to avoid misrepresentation and
any form of child and forced labour. During FY2017, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other laws and regulations
relating to employment and labour practices.

Rk - HERERHRE (B)
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R - ERERHRE (E)

OPERATING PRACTICES

Customer Care

There is no major procurement involved in our business, so in the supply
chain management aspect, we will focus on customer relationship
management instead. Customer care is one of the core values of the
Group. The Group is committed to provide customers with thoughtful
and consistently high standard of service and strive to treat customers
fairly at all stages of its business relationship. With a “Clients First”
principal, the Group emphasises a one-on-one personal approach to
service and provides a variety of highly flexible loan solutions to its
customers.

Front-line employees are well-trained with adequate and update
knowledge on relevant regulations to ensure the services provided are
complied with all relevant regulations. The Group also acknowledges the
increasing use of social media and electronic applications, and strives
to enhance its service delivery through the development of mobile
applications and incorporating various value-added features, such
as online property valuation and online loan application, to improve
customer experience. Complaint system has been set up for customers
to address comments and complaints. Our service pledge is to follow up
and resolve complaints in a responsive manner.

Customer education is also another topic that we have been working on
as we value the well-being of our customers and the society. The Group
communicates the latest market information to customers through its
social media channels, such as news relating to fraud cases commenced
by illegal financial intermediates and tips for prevention from being
cheated, in order to increase customer’s awareness.

To reward customer’s support, the Group also launches a membership

program “GLOBAL CLUB”" that provides its members with corporate
discount offers on a variety of products and services.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Product Responsibility and Customer Privacy

The Group values the trust of its customers and as a provider of money
lending services, the Group has access to significant personal data of its
customer and therefore ensuring the privacy of customer information is
one of the issues the Group cares the most.

The Group is committed to the full implementation and compliance with
the Six Data Protection Principles and the requirements of the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486, Laws of Hong Kong) (the “PDPO").
The Group has formulated a set of privacy principles regarding collection,
retention, use, security, openness and accessibility of personal information
to ensure customer information received is only for its intended purpose
and to prevent information leakage, such as:

requiring employees not to retain or disclose any confidential
information about the Group’s business activities and other sensitive
confidential data to any third parties;

requiring customers to acknowledge their rights under the PDPO,
the purpose of collecting their personal data upon completion and
signing of the application forms;

ensuring that confidential personal data is not obtained through
telephone conversations; and

ensuring that customer files are kept in a locked cabinet.

Employees are also being invited and encouraged to attend the training
courses organised by the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data to
increase awareness and understanding of the PDPO. The Group will
continue to monitor, review and, when necessary, update its privacy
principles and policies to ensure they are in compliance with the PDPO.

The Group also understand that our computer systems maybe prone
to hackers attack due to the increasing hacker activities, therefore, the
Group regularly conduct IT control review to update the security system.

Rk - HERERHRE (B)
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Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and during the Reporting Period, the Group has complied,
to the best of its knowledge, with applicable laws and regulations that
have significant impact on the business of the Group. In particular, as a
money lenders license holder, the Money Lenders Ordinance ("MLO")
constitutes a significant influence to the Group’s money lending business.

The credit approval policy and process adopted by the Group has been
designed to ensure that the Group's business operates in accordance
with the MLO. The Group also regularly monitors, reviews and, when
necessary, updates the existing policy to ensure the money lending
business is strictly in compliance with the MLO.

Anti-corruption and Anti-money Laundering

In order to uphold the highest ethical standards, all management and
staff of the Group are required to strictly follow the Group’s Code of
Conduct and to sign acknowledgement that they understand and agree
to the Code of Conduct adopted by the Group. With the purpose of
preventing potential bribery, extortion and fraud, the Group’s Code of
Conduct clearly states that:

Employees shall not accept gifts or other benefits that are beyond
common business hospitality, or the head of department or the
chief executive shall be consulted.

Under no circumstances should an employee offer bribes to any
person or company for the purpose of obtaining or retaining
business.

Employees should always avoid any situation involving a conflict,
or that could be perceived by others as a conflict, between
their personal interests, or those of their close relatives, and the
performance of their official duties.

If a potential conflict exists, employees should make prompt and full
disclosure to the management.

To prevent and detect money laundering and terrorist financing, the
Group has incorporated policies and procedures in our operation and
credit guidelines and policies, which include procedures for customer
due diligence, reporting of suspicious transactions, record-keeping,
and staff training. The Group's policies and procedures in respect of
prevention and detection of money laundering and terrorist financing
activities include, but are not limited to, the following:

Carry out know-your-client procedures by verifying the applicant’s
identity using reliable and independent source documents.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Check loan applicants against the sanctioned countries, firms,
entities and individuals from various lists and relevant websites.

All loan repayments from customers are made by cheque, bank
transfer or autopay with their own bank accounts.

The Group will report any suspicious transactions to the Joint
Financial Intelligence Unit using the standard form or the e-channel
"STREAMS'.

The Group maintains all essential information of our customers, with
the PDPO.

The Group encourages and supports its employees to maximise
their potential and to seek practical and professional training,
when available, on matters related and relevant to their roles and
responsibilities, the money lending business and current legislation
and practices.

During FY2017, the Group did not identify any non-compliance related to
anti-corruption and anti-money laundering.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group is committed to honoring its corporate social responsibility for
the benefit of the society by participating in a variety of charitable events
and cultivating the concept of corporate social responsibility throughout
the organisation. The Group participates in a variety of charitable events
every year and the followings summarised the Group'’s contribution
during the year:

Made donations and participated in the flag sale activities organized
by the Urban Peacemaker Evangelistic Fellowship and S.K.H. St.
Christopher's Home.

Participated in the elderly and underprivileged families visiting
activities organized by the Urban Peacemaker Evangelist Fellowship.

Made donations to support Hong Kong Alzheimer's Disease
Association, Project Orbis International Inc, World Vision Hong Kong,
Hong Kong Red Cross, Food Angel, World Wide Fund for Nature
Hong Kong, Po Leung Kuk and The Against Elderly Abuse of Hong
Kong.
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ESEHRE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) presents their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 69.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents
per ordinary share, totalling HK$12,000,000 payable to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Tuesday, 12 June 2018. The proposed final dividend will be paid on or
about Friday, 29 June 2018 following approval at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company.

No arrangement under which a shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividends was made by the Company.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$73,000 (2016: HK$82,000).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2017 available
for distribution to Shareholders amounted to HK$579,276,000 (2016:
HK$586,333,000).
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SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES

No new shares or debentures were issued by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2017

Details of the share capital of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 148 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither our Company nor any of our subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of our Company’s listed securities during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted and
approved pursuant to a written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed
on 22 November 2014 and its refreshment of the scheme mandate limit
was approved at an extraordinary general meeting held on 11 November
2015. The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and
to recognise and acknowledge the contributions which the Eligible
Participants (defined in paragraph below) have made or may make to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants
with the opportunity to own a personal stake in the Company with a view
to motivating the Eligible Participants and/or attracting and retaining or
otherwise maintaining on-going relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are, will be or are likely to be beneficial to the long
term growth of the Group.

Report of the Directors (Continued)
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The Directors (which include a duly authorised committee thereof) may,
at its absolute discretion, invite any person belonging to any of the
following classes of participants (“Eligible Participants”), to take up options
(the “Options”) to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the Company
(“Shares”):

() any Director (whether executive or non-executive or independent
non-executive), employee (whether full-time or part-time), officer,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or any entity in which the Company or any
subsidiary holds any interest (“Invested Entity”);

(i) any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any Director (whether executive or non-executive or independent
non-executive), employee (whether full time or part time), officer,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(i) any corporation wholly-owned by any person mentioned in clause (i)
above.

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of
Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options available to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed the Scheme
Mandate Limit (i.e. 10% of the Shares in issue as at 11 November 2015
being the date of approval of the refreshed limit by the Shareholders).
The Company had 400,000,000 Shares in issue as at 11 November 2015,
the refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit allows the Company to issue under
the Share Option Scheme a maximum of 40,000,000 Shares, representing
10% of the issued shares as at the date of this annual report.

Notwithstanding the above, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all Options granted to an Eligible Participant (including exercised and
outstanding Options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue from time to time, unless approved by the Shareholders in
general meeting.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the board of directors to each grantee, which period may
commence on a day after the date upon which the offer for the grant of
options is made but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from
the date of grant of the option. No further options may be granted more
than 10 years after 22 November 2014.

The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from 22 November 2014, the date on which the Share Option Scheme
was adopted.

The subscription price per share under the Share Option Scheme (the
“Subscription Price”) shall be a price determined by the Directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of:

()  the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which must
be a Business Day;

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five Business Days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a share.

For the purpose of calculating the Subscription Price, where the Company
has been listed for less than five Business Days, the new issue price shall
be used as the closing price for any Business Day falling within the period
before listing.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.0 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of an option within 21 days from the date of the offer of grant of the
option.

No share options under the Share Option Scheme were granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year.

Report of the Directors (Continued)
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Ms. Jin Xiaogin

Independent non-executive Directors:
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, Ms. Wang Yao and Mr. Man Yiu
Kwong, Nick shall retire from office by rotation at the next annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of their independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTER OF
APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company regarding her appointment as executive Director for a
term of one year and shall continue thereafter unless terminated by not
less than six months written notice or otherwise in accordance with the
service agreement.

None of the executive Directors has or is proposed to have a service
contract that is not determinable by the Company within one
year without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

According to the terms of the service agreements entered into between
the Company and the executive Directors, each of the executive
Directors will receive a monthly salary which is subject to annual review
by the Board and the Remuneration Committee. Each of the executive
Directors is also entitled to a discretionary performance bonus as
may be determined by the Board upon the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors, Dr. Ng Lai Man,
Carmen, Mr. Tang, Warren Louis and Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick has signed
a letter of appointment with the Company and were appointed for a
three-year term expiring on 21 November 2020, 21 November 2020
and 31 December 2018, respectively, unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the relevant letter of employment.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in Note 19 of the consolidated financial statements in
relation to the acquisition of a convertible promissory note (the “Note”) of
Quark Finance Group (“Quark”) in 2015 and the related party transactions
as disclosed in Note 30 of the consolidated financial statements, no other
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to which the
Company's subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a
Director and a Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had interests in
businesses, which compete or are likely to compete either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Each of Blossom Spring Global Limited (“Blossom Spring”) and Ms. Jin
Xiaogin (“Ms. Jin") has provided annual confirmations in respect of the
compliance with non-competition undertaking (the “Undertaking”) given
by them.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
compliance by each of Blossom Spring and Ms. Jin with the Undertaking
during the year ended 31 December 2017. The independent non-
executive Directors have confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there
is no breach by any of Blossom Spring and Ms. Jin of the Undertaking
given by them.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 18 to 20 to this annual report.

Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEmE(E)

ESENHARRREBBEAZXRS &
BREHFNERERS

BREHTERENTIONBEREBE_S—AF
W& Quark Finance Group([Quark]) By AR A 5,
ER(RE]) RE M BR300 #HES
BEEE T X SN - EE R AR ESENARQ RN
B R A H A R AT T AR G AL Sl S IR A {5
TMERNEREARS - THRANTHBEER
Sk EAER -

EENGFEBN#ES

RAFREHY  EERRESENBBEACER
R LR A 3 8 5 B Sk R A B AN A K ELBfY
BAREGHEFHAEHFINEBTRERE L
MR AR TR EER o

Blossom Spring Global Limited ([ Blossom Spring |)
keBEL+ (@ )EZEMETEMED
RS EGE ([ FGE ) IR FEHER

BYENTERNEEHNEE—_T—+F+=A
=+—HILFE * Blossom Spring M & X+ & B
BTEENEN o BUIERITESHER - BES
FrEREE M 5 ° Blossom Spring & & £ 153 &
BRE(ELAFE -

EEREREEEBEFE

EENEREEERREHINAFRFEISE20
EO

57



OIING

Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2017

Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE(E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of each Director
and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO were as follows:

Interest in the Company

Nature of
interest

Name of Director Capacity

BEEMHR )

Ms. Jin Interest in a controlled corporation™
ST R EE R HE
Note:

Q)] Blossom Spring is the registered and beneficial owner of these shares. The entire issued
share capital of Blossom Spring is held by Ms. Jin. Therefore, Ms. Jin is deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by Blossom Spring for the purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year did the Directors or
chief executive of the Company (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) have any interest in, or had been granted or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if
applicable) of the Company, and its other associated corporations which
required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the Share Option Scheme of the Company as set out in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company had an interest or a short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO:

Name of shareholder

Capacity

IR A ) BEME

Blossom Spring” Beneficial interest

Btk HE

Mr. Wong Tai Wai'?
FREFEAED

Interest of spouse

[T e
Notes:

1 The entire issued share capital of Blossom Spring is held by Ms. Jin. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Jin is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Blossom Spring.

2) Mr. Wong Tai Wai is the spouse of Ms. Jin. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wong Tai Wai is
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in which Ms. Jin is deemed to
be interested.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2017, there was no other
person so far known to the Directors or chief executives of the Company,
other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company as having
an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

Nature of interest

Long position

Long position
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administrative of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company's top five customers
accounted for approximately 11.4% of total revenue and the Company’s
single largest customer accounted for approximately 2.7% of total
revenue.

All the Company's top five customers were independent third parties. To
the best of their knowledge, information and belief, none of the Group, its
Directors, members of senior management, and their respective associates
and Shareholders who own more than 5% of the issued shares, had any
interest in or financial or business relationship with any of the Group's top
five customers during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2017 as disclosed in Note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted fully exempted connected transactions
under the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS

Save for transactions in connection with the reorganisation in preparation
for the listing of the shares on the Stock Exchange, as disclosed in the
Prospectus and save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Group’s
controlling shareholder had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Appropriate Directors' liability insurance has been arranged to indemnify
the Directors for liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The coverage
and the sum insured under the policy are reviewed annually. Further, the
Company’s Articles of Association provide that Directors are entitled to be
indemnified out of the Company’s assets against claims from third parties
in respect of certain liabilities.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance cover
in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is
sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company's issued shares as at
27 March 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 7 to 17
under the section “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report, which forms part of this directors’ report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2017
and up to the date of this annual report, there is no significant or
important event that affects the business of the Group.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.
A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Wang Yao

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018

Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B 2R BENRE

e
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GLOBAL INTERNATIONAL CREDIT GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Global International Credit
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 69 to 147, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit relates to impairment assessment
of loans and interest receivables.

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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BB RS ()

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HRETEE BN ETNAEEEARENEE
Impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables

Refer to Note 4.1(a) (critical estimates, judgments ~ We assessed management’s assessment of provision for impairment of loans
and errors), Note 16 (loans receivable) and Note 17 and interest receivables by performing the following procedures:

(interest receivables) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s net loans and
interest receivables amounted to HK$766.9 million
and HK$6.0 million, respectively. Provision for
individual and collective impairment assessments of
loans and interest receivables amounted to HK$13.3
million and HK$2.5 million, respectively.

Management assessed the provision for impairment
of loans and interest receivables based on an
estimate of the recoverability of these receivables.
Provisions for individual impairment are applied
to loans and interest receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible; whereas provisions
for collective impairment are applied to loans
and interest receivables based on actual historical
impairment rates on loans and interest receivables.

We focused on this area because the carrying
value of loans and interest receivables is significant
to the consolidated financial statements and the
management’s impairment assessment of loans and
interest receivables require the use of significant
judgments and estimates.

understood, evaluated and validated the controls over impairment
assessment of loans and interest receivables, which relates to
management’s identification of events that triggered the provision
for impairment of loans and interest receivables and estimation of the
amount of provisions;

carried out procedures, on a sample basis, to test the existence and
accuracy of the aging of loans and interest receivables as at the
reporting date;

reviewed management’s assessment on the adequacy of provision
for individual impairment based on customer’s ability to repay the
outstanding loans and interest receivables and the value of underlying
collaterals;

examined, on a sample basis, a number of individual significant
customers which were not identified by management as potentially
impaired and performed audit procedures to assess the recoverability,
based on examination of the customer’s repayment records and
independent researches on public available information on the values
of underlying collaterals; and

re-performed management’s calculation of collective impairment
assessment which grouped together all the receivables with similar risk
characteristics and based on the reference to the actual historical loss
rates.

Based on the procedures described above, we found management's
judgments and estimates applied in the impairment assessment of loans and
interest receivables were supportable by available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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B AZ BN R ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Indgpendent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BB RS ()

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Mr. Chow Shiu Hay Antonio.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018

68

ERIE ER B BT - RIEEPLERY
AHEHPHREANETRAER - AMENKH
REFTEE - APERBMBETRHRAGELES
B BOPEREEABR I ARKEELEH X
ERmFERLNBERT - MRSEFRRERFIRE
EERFIEK B ERRBBELEN AR
@ BPPRENEERETEELFTH -

HARBTZBERENEARBABARBI
BRSEA -

BORKES A EBAT
HES D

B8 —E-N\F=A=-++H



v

BIREEEEAERLT 2017 FIR

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BOtEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &#ZE=—Z—+t&+=-A=+—HILEE

Year ended 31 December
BZE+=-A=+—HILLFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FExT FAT
Revenue YA 6 103,479 130,295
Other income HA A 6 45 1,308
Administrative and other expenses TH R H 7 (29,162) (34,711)
Fair value change and loss on early MESRTAENRATEZS R
redemption on derivative financial IRFERIEE
instrument 20 (15,306) (5,302)
Finance income/(costs) — net B (AR) —F58 9 14,941 (3/438)
Profit before income tax RRRIEBLATRRI 73,997 88,152
Income tax expense MEBRAXZ 10 (10,991) (11,609)
Profit and total comprehensive income &2 F#HE ABEERBFR
for the year attributable to owners mEW AT
of the Company 63,006 76,543
Earnings per share attributable to KAREBAEBEEBREF
owners of the Company
— Basic and diluted —HAREE
(expressed in HK cents per share) (AEREILZS)) 11 15.8 19.1
The notes on pages 74 to 147 are an integral part of these consolidated F742 147 BT RN E I 5 IR R H 4R K 2B
financial statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SO BN R

As at 31 December 2017 R=Z—t&H+=-H=+—H

As at 31 December
Rt+t=—A=+—8

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FExT FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - W N 13 734 1116
Loans receivable JEWE R 16 234,043 232,989
Deferred income tax assets BIENSHEE 23 727 806
Convertible promissory note A ARG R 19 - 151,956
Derivative financial instrument PTEemTA 20 - 15,306
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEfTFUE ~ #Ze REMERFHIE 18 1,341 -
Total non-current assets RBEELE 236,845 402,173
Current assets REEE
Loans receivable R E R 16 532,866 666,276
Interest receivables FEWFI B 17 6,042 5,841
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B 5XI8 ~ $2& & EAth fE Uk k1B 18 3,319 5,530
Convertible promissory note AR R 19 - 81,492
Repossessed asset eI & E 21 1,778 -
Pledged deposit [RELeiVER 22 4,750 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 22 13,445 130,433
Total current assets REBEEHAE 562,200 889,572
Total assets EESE 799,045 1,291,745
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners RAREE AEGLER
of the Company
Share capital (&N 27 4,000 4,000
Reserves (G 28 694,315 658,509
Total equity ERBEH 698,315 662,509
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

BHBFIRR R ()

As at 31 December 2017 R=Z—t&H+=-HA=+—H

As at 31 December
Rt+t=—A=+—8

LIABILITIES
Non-current liability
Loan from the ultimate holding company

Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables
Tax payable

Bank and other borrowings
Loan from the ultimate holding company

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

af
FRBAE

REER AR ER
REAE

FEET & R N B AL B IR
FERTEIR
RITREAMRER

R AFER
RBRERE

BERE

EEREEAR

The notes on pages 74 to 147 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

On behalf of the Board

Ms. Wang Yao T & +
Director 2%

Ms. Jin Xiaoqin £ E z +
Director E&

N

Notes

B RE

RREES

2017 2016
—E—tF  FAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH FHT
- 178,815

3,037 3,101
2,323 869
95,370 396,074
- 50,377
100,730 450,421
100,730 629,236
799,045 1,291,745

FE74E 147 AR A S G S IR AR ED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B EREER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &#ZE=—Z—+t&+=-A=+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARER AES
Share Share Capital Retained
capital premium reserve earnings Total
BEx  ROEE  EARE  REEF @t
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W TR TR TER TEx TEx
Balance at 1 January 2016 RIE—XRF
—A—-BW&ER 4,000 122,176 390621 94,769 611,566
Total comprehensive FEGREUALE
income for the year - - - 76,543 76,543
Transactions with owners BEBANRS
Final dividend relating to 2015 BR-S-AFMAERE 12 - - - (14,400) (14,400)
Interim dividend relating to 2016~ BE=E—~FRHHRE 12 - - - (11,200) (11,200)

Total transactions with owners, SEHEEANRZHEE
recognised directly in equity B IEREZHER - - - (25,600) (25,600)

Balance at 31 December2016 R_-Z—XF
+ZA=1+—-HWie 4000 122,176 390,621 145,712 662,509

Balance at 1 January 2017 R-E—+tF

—B—- B 4,000 122,176 390,621 145,712 662,509
Total comprehensive FEGEUALE
income for the year - - - 63,006 63,006
Transactions with owners BREEANRS
Final dividend relating to 2016 BR-S— R FMRERE 12 - - - (12,000) (12,000)
Special dividend relating t0 2016 BB —Z—~ERERIR S 12 - - - (7,600) (7,600)
Interim dividend relating t0 2017~ BB =T —tFMFR RS 12 - - - (7,600) (7,600)

Total transactions with owners, EZHH AR Z A5 -
recognised directlyinequity ~ EERERER - - - (27,200) (27,200)

Balance at 31 December2017 R=Z—+&

TZA=+—-HWEH 4,000 122,176 390,621 181,518 698,315
The notes on pages 74 to 147 are an integral part of these consolidated F742 147 BT AR E I 5 IR R H 4R AR 2B
financial statements. 5 e
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &#ZE=—Z—+t&+=-A=+—HILEE

Year ended 31 December
BZE+=-A=+—HILLFE

Cash flows from operation activities
Cash generated from operations

Loan interest received

Interest paid

Hong Kong profits tax paid, net

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Principal and interest received from
convertible promissory note
Bank interest received

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of bank and other borrowings

Proceeds from bank and other borrowings

(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank
deposits

Repayment of principal and interest to the
ultimate holding company

Dividend paid to the equity holders

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year

The notes on pages 74 to 147 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FHET
100,247 82
103,278 131,587
(8,943) (27,461)
(9,458) (14,524)
185,124 89,684
(33) (1,016)
277,726 -
37 167
277,730 (849)
(392,227) (115,056)
91,523 50,000
(4,750) 31,054
(247,188) -
(27,200) (25,600)
(579,842) (59,602)
(116,988) 29,233
130,433 101,200
13,445 130,433
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Global International Credit Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 January 2014 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office is P.O. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans
in Hong Kong.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) regard Blossom
Spring Global Limited (“Blossom Spring”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), as the ultimate holding company
of the Company.

The Company has its primary listing on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars ("HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of
Directors for issue on 27 March 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
are for the Group consisting of Global International Credit Group
Limited and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(i)  Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS) and requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

(i)  Historical cost convention
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
derivative financial instrument, which is measured at fair
value.

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing 1 January 2017:

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses — Amendments to HKAS 12, and

Disclosure initiative — amendments to HKAS 7.

The Group also elected to adopt the following amendments
early.

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2014-
2016 Cycle

The adoption of these amendments did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods.
Most of the amendments will also not affect the current
or future periods. The amendments to HKAS 7 require
disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, see Note 26.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

76

(iv) New standards and interpretation not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2017 reporting periods and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group's assessment of
the impact of these new standards and interpretations is
set out below.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

Nature of change

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities
and is expecting the following impact from the adoption
of the new standard on 1 January 2018:

The financial assets held by the Group include:

debt instruments currently classified as held-to-
maturity and measured at amortised cost which
meet the conditions for classification at amortised
cost under HKFRS 9.

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new
guidance to affect the classification and measurement of
these financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group's accounting for
financial liabilities, as the new requirements only affect
the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated
at fair value through profit or loss and the Group
does not have any such liabilities. The derecognition
rules have been transferred from HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and have
not been changed.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEXETHHEEBME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 REEE(E)
(iv) I ARBRABIFTZTERI R 2FE ()

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(iv) New standards and interpretation not yet adopted

(Continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
(ECL) rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case
under HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified
at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, contract
assets under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, lease receivables, loan commitments and
certain financial guarantee contracts. Management is in
the process of reviewing the loans receivable portfolios
and the impact of the new model on its impairment
provisions. It is anticipated that earlier recognition of
credit losses may result. Management is in the process
of quantifying the potential effects to its consolidated
financial statements.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and extent of the Group's
disclosures about its financial instruments particularly in
the year of the adoption of the new standard.

Date of adoption by Group

The new standard must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The Group
will apply the new rules retrospectively from 1 January
2018, with the practical expedients permitted under the
standard. Comparatives for 2017 will not be restated,
except in relation to changes in the fair value of foreign
exchange forward contracts attributable to forward
points, which will be recognised in the costs of hedging
reserve.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

78

(iv) New standards and interpretation not yet adopted

(Continued)
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which
covers contracts for goods and services and HKAS 11
which covers construction contracts and the related
literature.

The new standard is based on the principle that revenue
is recognised when control of a good or service transfers
to a customer.

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

Impact
Management has assessed the effects of applying the
new standard on the Group's financial statements and
is of the view that the standard will not have significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

Date of adoption by Group

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The Group
intends to adopt the standard using the modified
retrospective approach which means that the cumulative
impact of the adoption will be recognised in retained
earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that comparatives will
not be restated.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 EAEBERMEGR)

2.1 REEE(E)
(iv) I ARBRABIFTZTERI R 2FE ()

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(iv) New standards and interpretation not yet adopted

(Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” BANBREERE 165 HE ]
Nature of change ZEtE

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in
almost all leases being recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low-
value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for the Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$5,377,000. The Group estimates
that none of these relate to payments for short-term and
low value leases which will be recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss.

However, the Group has not yet assessed what other
adjustments, if any, are necessary for example because
of the change in the definition of the lease term and the
different treatment of variable lease payments and of
extension and termination options. It is therefore not yet
possible to estimate the amount of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities that will have to be recognised on
adoption of the new standard and how this may affect
the Group's profit or loss and classification of cash flows
going forward.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv) New standards and interpretation not yet adopted
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Mandatory application date/Date of adoption by Group

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the standard
before its effective date. The Group intends to apply
the simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective
and that would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group in the current or future reporting periods
and on foreseeable future transactions.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

80

accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group (refer to note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

23

24

2.5

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

equity interests issued by the Group

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive Directors of the entities now comprising the
Group that makes strategic decisions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

82

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS"), which is Global International Credit Group
Limited’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. They are deferred
in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable
to part of the net investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, within finance costs.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on non-monetary such as
derivative financial instrument are recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
part of the fair value gain or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BATHBERBE(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 2.7 ¥ - BERFRE

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

- Furniture, fixtures and 4-5 years
equipment
— Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

84

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflow which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

(i)  Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the purposes for which the investments were
acquired. Management determines the classification of
its investments at initial recognition.

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group classifies financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss if they are acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term, ie are held for trading. They are presented as
current assets if they are expected to be sold within
12 months after the end of the reporting period;
otherwise they are presented as non-current
assets. The Group has not elected to designate any
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification (Continued)

(b)  Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. If collection
of the amounts is expected in one year or less
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets. The Group's loans
and receivables comprise loans receivables, interest
receivables, deposits and other receivables and
pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents
in the consolidated statement of financial position
(Note 2.13,2.14, 2.15 and 2.16, respectively).

Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative
trading financial asset out of the held for trading
category if the financial asset is no longer held for the
purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial assets
other than loans and receivables are permitted to be
reclassified out of the held for trading category only in
rare circumstances arising from a single event that is
unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In
addition, the Group may choose to reclassify financial
assets that would meet the definition of loans and
receivables out of the held for trading or available-for-
sale categories if the Group has the intention and ability
to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future
or until maturity at the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the
reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost
or amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair
value gains or losses recorded before reclassification
date are subsequently made. Effective interest rates
for financial assets reclassified to loans and receivables
and held-to-maturity categories are determined at the
reclassification date. Further increases in estimates of
cash flows adjust effective interest rates prospectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

86

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss as gains and losses from investment securities.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEXETHHEEBME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

29 SREE(H)
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2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
(iv) Measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value are recognised as follows:

for ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ — in profit or loss within other income or other
expenses

for available-for-sale financial assets that are
monetary securities denominated in a foreign
currency - translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost of the security are
recognised in profit or loss and other changes
in the carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income

for other monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale — in other
comprehensive income.

Dividends on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss as part of revenue from
continuing operations when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

Interest income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is included in the net gains/(losses).
Interest on available-for-sale securities, held-to-maturity
investments and loans and receivables calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss as part of revenue from
continuing operations.

Details on how the fair value of financial instruments is
determined are disclosed in Note 3.3.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

88

2.10 Derivative financial instrument

211

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
where Global International Credit Group Limited currently
has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Global International Credit Group Limited has also entered
into arrangement that do not meet the criteria for offsetting
but still allow for the related amount to be set off in certain
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the terminatior of a
contract.

2.12 Impairment of financial assets carried at

amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets carried at
amortised cost (Continued)
The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

(a)

(b)

Significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the borrower
a concession that the lender would not otherwise
consider;

It becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

The disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties; or

Observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the
portfolio, including:

(i) adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio; and

(i) national or local economic conditions that correlate
with defaults on the assets in the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets carried at

amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.13 Loans receivable

90

Loans receivable are property mortgage loans and personal
loans granted to customers in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of loans receivable is expected in one year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.14 Interest receivables
Interest receivables are interests derived from property
mortgage loans and personal loans granted to customers in
the ordinary course of business.

Interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.15 Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand
and deposits held at call with banks.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Other payables
Other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
account is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.20 Borrowing costs

92

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete the asset for its intended use or sales.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sales.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEXETHHEEBME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

221 BNE B RIS H

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company's
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

94

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Investment allowances and similar tax incentives
Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim
special tax deductions for investments in qualifying
assets or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The Group
accounts for such allowances as tax credits, which means
that the allowance reduces income tax payable and
current tax expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised
for unclaimed tax credits that are carried forward as
deferred tax assets.

2 EAEBERMEGR)

221 BPEIRERE R 1S HL (4])

AL T35 (&)
ERARLRAERZFEREER
REBZRKERR SR - T
RELEFIBHERE °

AN X B BE SR ) B M B I R 2
R BESEZ8 e N Rl
KEEE - AT EREINEHZRER
EEEREZHZEREZBERR
ERBREREE °

fie 78 A TE 7] 58 I A 1T 4 MK 3K B HA T
BEENBE  NBREN AR
Al — RIS REARRE - RIIKSHIEE IR
BEIAE - WEREALE AR
TN MR R R R A E N
HHEEMARKEMNEE - RIEHER
HIMREERHAARE -

B B HL A 2 T MK o ok B IR N R e
RHYIA B RSN - BV ROEE R AR
BEAER - REBERT - RETD
PR EME RS R B RS TER o

() REFH RIS 220
AEEBETARNAELEER
BESIMA BRI BRIV
BmR o AEBERZER AR
RRBER - RTZERE
FERN RIS MBI X - I
ERABEERERELEHIBEE
BREZABRRBFERM T AR

7
s ©



v

BIREEEEAERLT 2017 FIR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group has a defined contribution plan for its
employees. The Group pays contributions to trustee-
administered pension funds on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employment costs when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Company'’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period. Employee entitlements to sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management’s best estimate of expenditures required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

2.24 Repossessed assets

96

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their
fair value less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related
outstanding loans on the date of repossession, and the related
loans and advances together with the related impairment
allowances are derecognised from the consolidated statement
of financial position. Subsequently, repossessed assets are
measured at cost less impairment.
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B ORI IR R M ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BATHBERBE(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Revenue recognition 225 KA TER

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of services in the ordinary course of
the Group's activities.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group's activities as described below.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised and accrued using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income
on impaired loan and receivables are recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

2.26 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are not transferred to the Group as lessee are
classified as operating leases (note 29). Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholder is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company's shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

WABEAEEABEBRIETIHE
RIEEE Wk IR ER D FE -

AEERBA SRR EHAE
AREENmAERABRBY A
TSR AR (B U BY E 5 E (R 1 B FE R
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FIE WA
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fie B RN FE WG IR 3R RE - RIS
EHEREEREFTREERE - B
AARREERERTANRERNX
IR WHERRITRSFERA -
EREE R &K FIAN B AIRIR
BENRER -
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3

98

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to various types of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Currency risk

The Group engages in commercial transactions
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong
dollars, and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to Renminbi ("RMB") during the year ended 31 December
2016.

The Group had an investment in convertible promissory
note denominated in RMB whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. Currency exposure
arising from the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operation was managed primarily through loan from
the ultimate holding company denominated in the
same foreign currency. The investment in convertible
promissory note and the loan from the ultimate holding
company has been fully settled during the year ended
31 December 2017.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's interest rate
risk arises from its loans receivable (Note 16), pledged
deposit and cash and cash equivalents (Note 22), and
bank and other borrowings (Note 25). Except for pledged
deposit, cash and cash equivalents and bank and other
borrowings, which are entitled to interest at variable
rates, and expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk, loans receivable are issued at fixed rates.

As at 31 December 2017, if market interest rates
had been 1% higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profits would have been
approximately HK$645,000 (2016: HK$1,801,000) lower/
higher, respectively.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk arises from pledged deposit,
cash and cash equivalents, loans receivable, interest
receivables and deposits and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. The carrying amounts of these balances
represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to financial assets which are stated as follows:

B ORI IR R M ()

3 HM¥ERER(E)
3.1 HEREER(E)

(c)

EEmER
AEEEERBRELEEERE
RBRERBASFEY  BK
B YR EIA RiRe R EAM
FEY IR - EIEECHFIEER
R HEEEZEEEAR -8
BESREmENRNEER T e
BMEEMHEBNSIAEERR

As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—8H

Loans receivable (Note 16)

Interest receivables (Note 17)

Deposits and other receivables (Note 18)
Convertible promissory note (Note 19)
Derivative financial instrument (Note 20)
Repossessed asset (Note 21)

Pledged deposit (Note 22)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22)

As at 31 December 2016 and 2017, all of the Group’s
pledged deposit and cash at bank are deposited in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong, which the
Group's management believes are of high credit quality.

As at 31 December 2016 , the convertible promissory
note was entered with a connected party which has
been early redeemed during the year end 31 December
2017 as detailed in Note 19.

U E R (M7E16)
FEUCF B (F5E17)

e R E A UG E (MiRE18)
AR AR (B EE19)
PTES BT B (M:E20)

el el B EE (M RE21)

B E R (7E22)
RekBEEEEM(E2)

2017 2016
—E—tHF NS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
766,909 899,265
6,042 5,841
2,776 3,940

- 233,448

- 15,306

1,778 -
4,750 -
13,445 130,433
795,700 1,288,233

RZE—RERZT—tF+=
B=+—H  AEEEEIEKF
BRABRITHSHEREBHAR
TRV AEBEEEMREZ
ERIBEFELERER -

RZTE-—RET-_A=+t—8"
REBE—FBEETR AR
BRAEAREER ERBE_T—+
FHt-A=T—RILFERTE
Bl - FEENEE9
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

100

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, loans receivable of
HK$45,312,000 (2016: HK$98,629,000) and interest
receivables of HK$3,652,000 (2016: HK$1,999,000), were
past due but not impaired. These related to a number
of third party customers for whom there was no recent
history of default. The Directors are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment on individual loan is
necessary for these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the respective
principal and/or interest that had been overdue were
still fully secured by the fair value of collateral at their
respective prevailing market price. Accordingly, these
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for
each of their new and existing clients before standard
payment terms and conditions are offered. If there
is no independent rating, risk control assesses the
credit quality of the customer, taking into account its
financial position, past experience and other factors. The
Group holds collateral against certain loans receivable
in the form of mortgages over property. Majority of
the collateral are residential properties, commercial
properties and industrial properties and all of the
collaterals are located in Hong Kong. Individual risk limits
are set based on the value of collaterals provided by
customers and internal or external ratings in accordance
with limits set by the Directors. The utilisation of
credit limits is regularly monitored. The credit quality
classification of loans receivable and their respective
interest receivables using the Group’s credit rating
system is set out in the table below:

Loans receivable

3

BB EIR ()
31 E\jj’%npﬁgi(mﬁ)

(c) EEmEFEE)
R-_ZE—+t&+-_A=+—8"
453120008 T (=& — N F -
98,629,00078 7T ) M E I E X &
36520008 7L ( =& — N F ¢
1,999,0007 7T ) HY FE YL A1) 8.2 81 HA
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AR E= TP, »
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ERECEBEAS R SR BN
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Bhiaz FAERRAHIR B R B AR E
B o Bt RFERIDBER
QES 2 CEK

S hf TR M AR 2
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%ﬁ%i)f' EREEFPHEERR -
FEBUR - AIRRIES S
MEPEEER %Jﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]ﬂﬁ
Bk » BRI R EMEAE -
REB A ERIZBI AT E TR
WEFRAERm o KZHEM
mAEEME BRAMERIE
x> A2 ERmOURE
B o EREPRHHEAREE
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E’Jﬁ%ﬁiﬁl\*ﬁ? B % 7E 18 Al R B
REE - EMEREERBERB
e *E'JF$EI1:.,\ AR RS
RS R AR B R BME
BEEENBEHIINTE

W E R

As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—8H

Performing 2 BT
Doubtful RER

Loss gl
Gross loans receivable amount U E R4

2017 2016
—E—+tF T—RF
HK$’000 HKS 000
FER FAT
769,405 902,313
13,029 13,265
782,434 915,578
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HBIEEMEE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEEE(E)
(c) Creditrisk (Continued) () EmEEE)
Interest receivables FEWFIE

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
HK$"000 HK$/000
FHET FHET
Performing 2ETT 6,042 5,841
Doubtful RER - -
Loss i) 317 317
Gross interest receivables amount FEWFI B 48 6,359 6,158

The Group considers the loans and interest receivables
as doubtful if the repayment of principal and/or interest
has been overdue for more than 3 months and principal,
accrued interest and/or future interest may not be fully
secured by the fair value of collateral at its prevailing
market price. The Group considers the loans and interest
receivables as loss if the repayment of principal and/or
of interest has been overdue for more than 6 months
and the collection of principal and/or of interest in full
is improbable. The Group estimates and recognises
individual impairment losses for the loans and interest
receivables considered as 'doubtful and ‘loss’, taking into
account of the fair values of the collateral at prevailing
market prices are inadequate to cover the loans
receivable. Except for the overdue loans and interest
receivables of HK$13,383,000 as at 31 December 2017
(2016: HK$13,619,000), all principal and interests which
had been overdue were fully secured by the fair value of
collateral at their respective market price.

BEARE R/ SEAEESRAEEA
3MER - MR RIERITMER
BN ATERNZHZEHMER
& BB R SR RFIE
AR EBRZERER LTS A
RER - BRSNS B E A
HiBdefE B - BREUWEAS
X,/ S FE AR R A - B
EEBRWE R LT B AEIE -
KRB RIERITMENE
MAFETNTEERREN
AEBFHFLERERER K
FEMERREREAIREI X
[BE] - BRZZT—+tF+=
B=+—Hma 8RR E R & F
8133830008 L (ZF—/RF :
13,619,000/ 70 ) 7 + FT/B B #1 HA
AekFBTHERMEES
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

102

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group performs collective assessment of the loans
and interest receivables by grouping together all its
receivables with similar credit risk characteristics. The
impairment review is carried out on all those loans and
interest receivables based on the historical impairment
rates. The historical impairment rate is arrived at taking
the average of the most recent 5 financial years (2016:
5 financial years) of the percentage of impairment loss
to the total loans and interest receivables as at the
respective year end dates. The historical impairment rate
for the years ended 31 December 2017 was 0.32% (2016:
0.34%).

In general, the loan officers of the Group propose
to management on a monthly basis the amount of
provision to be made.

In the majority of cases, the Group grants loans with
a loan-to-value ratio of no more than 70% of the
value in the valuation report of the property for first
property mortgages, and where it is a subordinated
property mortgage, the aggregate lending (Group's
loan aggregated with all prior mortgage loans) of
no more than 70% of the value of the underlying
property. Approval from a director of the subsidiary of
the Company, a credit manager and a credit officer is
needed for loans granted with a loan-to-value ratio that
exceeds 70%. The directors and senior management of
the Company meet regularly to review the loan to value
ratio and when (1) there is a significant change in the
property price index in Hong Kong; or (2) when loans are
renewed. The directors and senior management of the
Company consider that the credit risk arising from the
loans and interest receivables is significantly mitigated
by the property held as collateral, with reference to
the market value of the property which were valued
by independent third party valuers as at the end of the
reporting period.

Revenue from the top five customers constituted
approximately 11.4% (2016: 18.2%) of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017. They
accounted for approximately 12.3% (2016: 20.9%) of
the gross mortgage loans receivable balances as at 31
December 2017.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 BBEEMERE(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEREE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) mEELEE

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facility. Cash
flow forecasting is performed by management. The
Group monitors its rolling forecasts of the Group's
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash
to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient
headroom on its undrawn borrowing facilities at all
times so that the Group does not breach borrowing
limits on any of its borrowing facilities. Such forecasting
takes into consideration the Group’s debt financing
plans, covenant compliance, compliance with internal
financial position ratio targets and, if applicable external
regulatory or legal requirements.

The Group has undrawn borrowing facilities of
HK$635,630,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$443,926,000). Such undrawn borrowing facilities
expire within one year and are annual facilities subject to
review every year.

The Group’s primary cash requirements, apart from
granting loans to customers, are for payment of bank
and other borrowings and payment for interest and
operating expenses.

BEERBESAREREEEE
AERENEEMERE  #
BRRAnNREMAIRES - B E
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HMBERERR)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERREE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) mEBELEEE)
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities TERAMBEREFRES
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining HAMFABEEE S NEER
period at the end of the reporting year to the contractual TRIEEZHBIIEAR - KH
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the BBESREA/ASORTHREESR
contractual undiscounted cash flows. =
As at 31 December
R+=—A=t—A~
2017 2016
—F—tF —FRE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Within one year —FR
Other payables (Note 24) E A FE AR IE (PR 3E24) 1,027 786
Bank and other borrowings (Note 25) SRIT R H A fE FR (P EE25) 95,370 396,074
Loan from the ultimate holding SR AT ER
company (Note 30(a)) (FF3E30()) - 50,377
One to two years —EWF
Loan from the ultimate holding BIEERATER
company (Note 30(a)) (FF3E30(@)) - 178,815
96,397 626,052
3.2 Capital management 32 BEXERE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to REBEBRERNEBFERRELFE
safequard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that KEmEe )  BUPHREMES RIRE
they can continue to provide retumns to the shareholder and HE A (o] 3R 0 A B fh R 5 AR B A LR 4
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal e AR #ESSENE REELUR
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. EE AR ©
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group BEFAABRERERE  AEExE
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, AEXMNTRROKE S - MR
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets REBER - BIFRMKIEEEEMN
to reduce debt. WARER o
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3.2 Capital management (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI IR R M ()

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘bank
and other borrowings’ and ‘loan from the ultimate holding
company’ as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) less pledged deposit and cash and cash
equivalents. Total equity is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group’s
strategy remains unchanged, which was to maintain the
gearing ratio within 100%, and the gearing ratios and net cash
position of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as

follows:

BB EIR ()
3.2 EXREE(E)

AEENEERBLEREEERE
AR o L RIRETSFRERR A E AR
AE - BHFRRERER(EBEA
PRI TR PR B9 [ IR 1T Je B Atb £

RN SiS i N

AIER]) R E HH

BEZNEs RELEEYEE - %
BEERE M EIRR KT ]
HE o AEBHKRBERSTE  BE
BELLRGEFE100% AR ¢ AL

BR_ZE—tFR_F—

NE+ZA

St HNEERBLERRREFHE

ARSUFRRINT ¢

As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—8H

Bank and other borrowings (Note 25)

Loan from the ultimate holding
company (Note 30(a))

Less: pledged deposit and cash and
cash equivalents (Note 22)

Net debt

Total equity

Gearing ratio

RITREME R (PRE25)
RIEER AR ER

(BF5E30())
B BIEAGEREES R
BeZEEY(ME22)
B F5
HEmAERE
BESFELE

2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
95,370 396,074

- 229,192
(18,195) (130,433)
77,175 494833
698,315 662,509
11.1% 74.7%
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HMBERERR)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AF{EMET
The carrying value of financial assets and liabilities carried at SRLEEREE FREFHKATER 2R
amortised cost approximate their fair values. HESEE QT EEE -
Assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEGIABREE
The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments TRAMAEBR —_T—RF+A
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2016 (2017: Nil) by level =t+—HBURATEIREQATFETE
of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair FrAMERNEAZSBE IR 2SR T
value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a BE(ZZ2—tF  |) - ZFRAEE
fair value hierarchy as follows: ElnapTl=(ArFEER :
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical . HEREEXEERNERM SRR
assets or liabilities (level 1). BORERAR)(B—EBR) -
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 - BESBECEZEAMER)XME
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (BB ERITE) AT B2 A
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from B(E—EANRERIN(E=
prices) (level 2). [E#R) °
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on - BEXARIFERTHEMSH
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) BRI A B 8 AR ) i A
(level 3). EE(E=ER) -
The derivative financial instrument held by the Group was RZE—+FNAZ+_HREFEL
fully written down to zero upon the early redemption of the HREARERERNEBEBFENITE
comestible promissory note on 22 September 2017 (Note 19 EHMITASREMBAZZ(ME19k
and 20). 20) °
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+—H
2017 2016
—F—tF —FRE
HK$’000 HKS'000
FTET FHET
Level 3 financial asset BE-MERMEE
Derivative financial instrument TEE2RTA - 15,306
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the FAMEE—  F_LFE=ZEHZHE
year. HIEERS o

106



BIREEEEARLQT 2017 F3f

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI IR R M ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HEERERE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEME (&)
Financial instrument in level 3 EoEHRLHMTA
The following table presents the changes in the level 3 THREVHEZZZT—RER_T—F
instrument for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017. FTF_AZ+—HULEFEE=ZEHRT
EmEE) -
Convertible promissory note classified ZSEATEESBMIAEN 2017 2016
as derivative financial instrument AR A RS —E—tHF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FEx FAT
At 1 January n—H—H 15,306 20,608
Fair value loss recognised in the Na R e W e R IR EY
consolidated statement of N{EEIE
comprehensive income (14,495) (5,302)
Loss on early redemption IR BRI EE (811) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 - 15,306
Total losses for the year included in the FRFAGHETRE
consolidated statement of Iz R EF NEE B
comprehensive income at the end
of the year (15,306) (5,302)
Unrealised losses for the year FREIAGHZEEREERD
included in the consolidated statement FRREREE
of comprehensive income at the end
of the year - (5,302)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
Quantitative information about fair value measurements
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)
An independent valuation of the Group’s convertible
promissory note classified as derivative financial instrument
was performed by an independent third party valuer,
International Valuation Limited, to determine its fair value as
at 31 December 2016. The valuation results are then reported
to the chief executive and senior management of the Group
for discussions in relation to the valuation processes and the
reasonableness of valuation results.

The valuation was determined using the binomial pricing
model based on significant unobservable inputs. These inputs

include:

Unobservable

3 BHIEAMREE(E)
3.3 AR {EMF(E)

31 December
2016

HRAZTET BB A 25 (F3ER)
Z R FEEBHBIEEH
AEBEDBRITESRTANAAR
HGL IR B F = 77 (M {ERD B R AT
HERDBETBUME - NEER
“E-RFH+ZA=t—BZAF
B - HEERBRERASEES R
BREEE  UERBRGHERFR
HEEARNAIEN -

EEDEA-BEAEERLENEKR
TABRBARBEE - ZFHAK
EEE

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

TABRRRABBERLFENBE

Description inputs

P THREGABE

Derivative financial Weighted average cost of
instrument capital

fTHESRIEA IMEFIH BRI A

Bond discount rate

BEHFRE

Historical volatility

15%
16.41%-16.45%

1641%%1645%
33.22%-47.45%

[ R & 3322947 45%

Discount for lack of control

Bl i
Conversion price (a)

81(B ()

Note (a): The conversion price represents the estimated price at which the
Group will convert the convertible promissory note to preference B
shares of Quark.
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25%

25%
RMB4.26

AREE4267T

The lower the discount rate, the higher
the fair value

FRESE - 2 TEES

The lower the bond discount rate, the
higher the fair value

EFETRELE  ATESS

The lower the historical volatility rate,
the lower the fair value

FE R AR - AT ESE

The lower the discount for lack of control,
the higher the fair value

EZBIETELE  ATERS

The lower the conversion price, the
higher the fair value

BHRELE  2TESS

i) - PFRERAEER T BREA LR RE
HRQuark BRI EEHERE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

CRITICAL ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND
ERRORS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates

(a)

(b)

Estimation of recoverability of loans and other
receivables

The Group assesses provision for impairment of loans
and other receivables based on an estimate of the
recoverability of these receivables. Provisions are applied
to loans and other receivables where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of impairment of loans
and other receivables requires the use of estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of receivables and provision for impairment losses in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Critical judgement in income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.

B ORI IR R M ()

4 FARMEET - FIERN SRR

REMBHREFEREMAGET - BRE
& ZEHARLIFABHRBR - EHE
FE NG B 2 & 5t BUR RS IR RS Z AR FIET -

fEat RHVE T ERE - EABEERK
HRERAEN  BRYAIETERRY
MBERRREBRBATHRR/EBEZKR
KREMZIER -

4.1 BAESIEE

(a) EEREMERSETREMS
V-Tia
AEBREEF N EMbEWFRIE
B ] O] M1 {5 R A 5% S5 e MR
HRBERE -SBBHHIBR
IR E I B A FE U TR A
BRAR A BEUR BB - RIFE A -
B & E At e W R R B R A
BEBREET - WIBEAERIR&IGE
SR REHEEBeYESH
(HETE B) Bf O PR U SR IB SRV E S
ERMEERTEE -

(b) FITZH 09 BE 5+ B
REBREBBEGRNEN - B
ENGHREERAFELERH
B - 2R P N ERENIARE
FEWARRE - AEERFE M
HRB BN AE RN EE
AAEERRAE - HREFFEEN
RERARREN SIS EEAR
A BEERSEEFELERHR
TR TE IR 0 B R SR FE RS 8
BERAE-
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B ORI IR R M ()

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017, all of the
Group's revenue was generated from the money lending business
of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in Hong
Kong. Revenue represents interest income earned from loans
offered to the Group's customers. Information reported to the
Group's chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of the Group’s performance, is focused
on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the Group's
resources are integrated and no discrete financial information is
available. Accordingly, no segment analysis or information about
the Group's products and services are presented.

All of the Group's revenue from external customers and assets was
generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2017.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue represents the interest income earned from the
money lending business of providing property mortgage loans
and personal loans in Hong Kong. Revenue and other income
recognised during the year are as follows:

Revenue ON
Interest income FEWA
Other income HAhug A
Bank interest income IRITFBHA
Referral income YA
Sundry income HMIBULA

110

SEER

REE-_Z—XREA-_ZT—+&+_-A
=+—HLEFE  AKENBAEELEER
EEREDERBERMAAETHER
2% - WMANBR TAEBEFPHERA
BEAFEWA - EAEBE RS &K
BHEME  EWRTAEETSLERR
EFHEHNERPREBRAREFELERANRT
EESBUVBERBR THREBREEL
BEE At YWERIEEAELEEER
ERRRIEH D BB D ITRE R} o

REE-_Z—REFER-_Z—+F+_-A8
=+—HLEFE  AEEXREIDEFLH
FIEWANBELEEB RMUREBER -

WA R EL AU A

WAEEREBRHMERBERRALA
BB REB TR T BN - RF
WEERRA R E AT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=1+—HILEE

2017 2016
—B—tF  ZFAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T
103,479 130,295

37 104

5 1,092

3 112

45 1,308
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B ORI IR R M ()

7 ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES 7 TEREMEX
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Administrative expenses THAX
Employee benefit expenses EERAMFAX
(including directors’ emoluments) (Note 8) (BREEEHH) (FH5Es) 11,879 12,927
Advertising and marketing expenses &R iisHERERE 7,834 8,030
Legal and professional fees FERREXEER 1,827 2417
Auditor's remuneration ZEA I &
— Audit services —FBIZARTE 1,200 1,300
— Non-audit services — TR 365 309
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - BiE M REFTE
(Note 13) (B&E13) 415 329
Operating lease of land and buildings THREFHLEHEE 3,993 3,900
Other administrative expenses EATER R 2,437 2,983
29,950 32,195
Other expenses Hitpak
(Reversal of provision)/provision for individual FEWE R E BRI ER S
impairment assessment of loans receivable (BB, s
(Note 16) (BizE16) (236) 3,354
Reversal of provision for collective impairment FEUE SR R E RS
assessment of loans receivable (Note 16) BRI (MiEe) (552) (838)
(788) 2,516
Administrative and other expenses THREAREX 29,162 34,711
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

EEEFRAX(BEESEHM)

Year ended 31 December
BZE+-A=1+—HLEE

Salaries, benefits and bonus
Pension costs — defined contribution plans

(Note) i)

Note: The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
of Hong Kong. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of their gross
earnings with a ceiling of HK$1,500 per month to the MPF Scheme. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in future year.

Contributions totalling HK$60,000 (2016: HK$120,000) were payable to the fund
at the year-end date.

112

¥e @i R
RIRE R — FE KRG8

o

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THTT
11,510 12,490

369 437

11,879 12,927

FEEREFECREIE RS EEH])2 858
AR EI([BEREE ) - RIFBEDF
ZRA - BEEIREEESAARARNEE
#5% (& A LR &1,5008 70) MR 5T E14ER -
RS ER - AEENEEERMZEIE
HPAF G o BLE B2 YRR BIER D AR A
BRI o

BEFEARNESHIRA £ H60000ET(ZF
—7N4F 1 120,000787T) °
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 8 EEEVFAX(BRESEHM) (&)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

Five highest paid individuals hEEESHFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the HE-_T—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE "
Group include 2 (2016: 2) directors for the year ended 31 December AEEAhEGERTHATRE R (ZE
2017, whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in —RNF2R)ESE HFEMWE REAK
Note 32. The emoluments payable to the remaining 3 (2016: 3) HRAIAOWMA - BEZZE—+F+=A
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows: —t+—HLEFE BHTHTIE(ZZ

—RNF 3B)EEFMALOFMEAT

Year ended 31 December
BEt=A=t+-ALEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Salaries, benefits and bonus e | RIE 2,844 2,518
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BRIRE KA — RET,\TA;#;'J 54 52
2,898 2,570
The above individuals with the highest emoluments are within the FiiseHEMA TOFMERDT

following bands:

Year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=+—HILLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Emoluments bands H N E
HK$500,001 = HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 7T 2 1,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 752 1,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 2 2,000,00078 7T 1 -
3 3
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9 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) - NET

9 HHFWA (RA) — B8

Year ended 31 December
BZE+-A=1+—HLEE

114

Interest expenses on secured bank loan

Interest expenses on secured other borrowings

Interest expenses on loan from the ultimate
holding company (Note 30(a))

Exchange realignment on loan from the ultimate
holding company (Note 30(a))

Exchange losses

Interest income from pledged deposit

Interest income from convertible promissory
note (Note 19)

Exchange realignment on convertible
promissory note (Note 19)

Gain from early redemption of convertible
promissory note (Note 19)

BHEMRITERNEMAX
BHEREMERNEMAX

BRI ARERF S
(Fft3E30())

RIRIEIG A RV E R E 5 E AR
(Fif7E30(a))

FE 5 &8

BT RF B

AR R B
(F=E19)

FHAROR SRARIE BRI
(F=E19)

1R T8 O AT poR L RIER U e
(F=E19)

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T
(445) (249)
(8,498) (27.212)
(5,216) (7,010)
(12,780) 13,287
(2,398) -

- 63
22,432 31,011
15,157 (13,328)
6,689 -
14,941 (3,438)
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 FEHAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% RER - BAFEH DIRBEE EREE
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. FE16.5%( ZF—714F © 16.5%)sHHEHEE -
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated statement FFAG PR W R R TISH SRR -

of comprehensive income represents:

Year ended 31 December
BZ+-—A=+—HILLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiExT FAT
Current tax BEATE I8

— Current tax on profits for the year —FRENERFIE R 10,922 11,455
— Qver-provision in prior years — A FBERE (10) (23)
Total current tax ENEATR IR B RE 10,912 11,432

Deferred tax (Note 23) IRIEFIE (P3E23)

— Provision for deferred income tax in current year — ZNFFIE T | S B4 79 177
Income tax expense FISH 10,991 11,609
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the BAEBNBRANESHINEFFTENTHEE

theoretical amount that would arise as follows: EReE TR - REHIT
Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—-HLEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Profit before income tax BR ST BE A 73,997 88,152
Calculated at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% & BFIEH TR 165%1E 12,210 14,545
Over-provision in prior years T FBRERE (10) (23)
Income not subject to taxation BERBIUA (7,315) (5,144)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR 5,949 2,103
Tax loss for which no deferred income tax assets R IERIRILFS T & EH

was recognised MIEE1E 133 216
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised R IERE R =R RIS E 24 (88)
Income tax expense FIEF S 10,991 11,609
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “IRD") has issued enquiries and a letter to
the Company disagreeing with certain interest income received by
the Company during the years of assessment 2015/16 and 2016/17
being claimed as capital and offshore in nature, and are expected
to issue the profits tax assessments for the captioned years of
assessment. A tax specialist has been engaged and valid technical
grounds are available in claiming the said interest income as
capital and offshore in nature. Accordingly, the directors are of the
view that no provision should be made at this stage, and they are
prepared to lodge an objection to the IRD against any assessment
to be issued. Based on the letter from the IRD, the directors assessed
that the maximum Hong Kong profits tax exposures, should the
Company fail in their objection of IRD’s assessments in respect of
years of assessment 2015/16 and 2016/17, would be HK$138,000

10 FEHRMAX(H)

BE_ZT—+tF+A=+—HBLFE "

EEBER([HMBER ) ARARRLEER
R RRTARABARRARR_-E—F/
TE-RER-E—X/ B LFTH
FEWBMZETHEKRABRRASE AR
RS - IR AT A B NS
BEBE - ARADERBRBERLEG
B MTIREIAE LR B ABRRA
BARBENEE - At - EERAHERK

BHBEELEE MERSEEERY
BREHMNEMIRKRELRY - B
BB R - EETEMAR T KRR
—E-R B -RER BN E
—EFEIREENR BRI EIEERY
AARAEEARENSSEEMNERD B A

and HK$3,660,000 respectively. In addition, on the same assessment 138,000/ 7T & 3,660,000/ 7T, © L) + ERAHE
basis, the exposure to Hong Kong profits tax provision for the year B HEEE =T —t T N\F:F
of assessment 2017/18 would increase by HK$2,755,000. T R AR BB NS S hN2,755,00078
T o
11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 SREF

(@) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$63,006,000
(2016: HKS$76,543,000) by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year of 400,000,000 (2016:
400,000,000 shares).

(a) BREAZERF
BREARNAEFNEZAQBHEE ARL
Y& 163,006,000 7T ( = F — /SN F -
76,543,000 70 ) R LA F N B 37T B
% hn g S 15 #400,000,0000% ( = Z — /<
£ 1 400,000,0000% )51 E

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—ALEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —
Profit attributable to owners of the RAREE AEERT
Company (HK$'000) (F%&7T) 63,006 76,543
Weighted average number of ordinary BREABRMNEFHTERR
shares in issue for basic earnings IS (FAR)
per share ('000) 400,000 400,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREAREFCEW) 15.8 19.1
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

12

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI IR R M ()

(b)

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 and
hence the diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic

earnings per share.

DIVIDEND

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 of
HK3.0 cents per share, totaling HK$12,000,000 is to be proposed at
the upcoming annual general meeting. These consolidated financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

Interim dividend paid of HK1.9 cents
(2016: HK2.8 cents) per share

Proposed final dividend of HK3.0 cents
(2016: HK3.0 cents) per share

Proposed special dividend of nil
(2016: HK1.9 cents) per share

11 BERBF(E)

BERBERFN

HE_Z—RXEER-_ZFT—+tF+=A
=t+t—BIFE  BEBRTENEA
B EN TR ALERESR
IR G EARBFIFER °

12 IRR

B o
o

BUR A ER AR B =R .98
(ZZ—7RF  28810)
EFIR R BB I3.0781L
(ZZ—7RF  3.0810)
BRI SR THEL
(ZZ—7"F 1981)

2017
—F—tF
HK$000
TR

7,600

12,000

AARHEREREREBEFAS FEHRN
BE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HILFEE
B R HARR B A% 3.078 1L (& 12,000,000
T0) ° WEE I SRR I 4 2 5 1t AR

2016
A

HK$'000
TAT

—=

11,200

12,000

7,600
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% - BERR
Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold
equipment improvements Total
HE -
HEREZE HEWMEESE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F#ET F#ET
At 31 December 2015 R=-Z2—HE+=A
=+—H
Cost B 2,047 2616 4,663
Accumulated depreciation and Z&H7E MIEE
impairment (1,618) (2,616) (4,234)
Net book amount ARTENFE 429 - 429

Yearended 31 December BHE=-Z—XRE+=AH

2016 =+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FHEEFE 429 - 429
Additions NE 966 50 1,016
Depreciation e (306) (23) (329)
Closing netbook amount  FREMEEE 1,089 27 1,116
At 31 December 2016 R=B—AE+=H

=+—H

Cost (DN 3,013 2,666 5679
Accumulated depreciation ZEEERRIE

and impairment (1,924) (2,639) (4,563)
Net book amount RREFE 1,089 27 1,116

Yearended 31 December #HE=-Z—t&+=AH

2017 =Et—HLFE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 1,089 27 1,116
Additions NE 33 - 33
Depreciation e (390) (25) (415)
Closing netbook amount  FREMEEE 732 2 734
At 31 December 2017 R=-ZB—t&+=H

=+—H

Cost [DE 2,118 2,666 4,784
Accumulated depreciation 2FHTE A

and impairment (1,386) (2,664) (4,050)
Net book amount BRERE 732 2 734
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14 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2017:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI IR R M ()

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity

AR L e B R
ARERRE

14 BT

Principal activities and
place of operation
FTEEBR

EELH

Directly owned:

EEEER

GIC (Overseas) Holdings Limited
('GIC Overseas")

GITI (Overseas) Limited
("GITI (Overseas)")

Indirectly owned:

BERES

Global International Credit Limited
("GIC")

BREERRAR(IRIHEE])

Global International Finance
Limited (formerly known as
“Global International Technology
Investment Limited”) (‘GIF")

RRERBRAR (R
BRI EBRAF])
(TRERERR])

Global Property Finance Limited
("GPF")

BHMFRBBRAR(CPF)

British Virgin Islands limited
liability company

RERLBHEBERAT

British Virgin Islands limited

liability company

REEAHSBRAR

Hong Kong limited liability
company

BREBRARF

Hong Kong limited liability
company

BEBRARF

Hong Kong limited liability
company

BEBRARF

Investment holding in Hong Kong
NEERERK
Investment holding in Hong Kong

REBREEK

Money lending business of
providing property mortgage
loans and personal loans in
Hong Kong

REBREMFRBEHR
MAERNEREH

Money lending business of
providing property mortgage
loans in Hong Kong

REBRENERIBEF
BRER

UTRR-ZT—tF+A=+—HBH&HE
ZMBRAFIE -
Group's equity
Share capital interest
N rEEHRAES
2017 2016
—B-tF —TRFE
201 ordinary 100% 100%
shares
201REBR
101 ordinary 100% 100%
shares
101 E R
391,000,000 100% 100%
ordinary shares
391,000,0008%
ERR
1,000 100% 100%
ordinary shares
1,0008%
ERR
10,000 100% 100%

Money lending business of
providing personal loans in

Hong Kong
REBRELAETOERES

ordinary shares

10,0008%
Lmik
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X

PR AR Byt (48)

15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

120

31 December 2017

Assets per consolidated
statement of financial
position

Loans receivable (Note 16)

Interest receivables (Note 17)

Deposits and other receivables
(Note 18)

Repossessed asset (Note 21)

Pledged deposit (Note 22)

Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 22)

Total

31 December 2016

Assets per consolidated
statement of financial
position

Loans receivable (Note 16)

Interest receivables (Note 17)

Deposits and other receivables
(Note 18)

Convertible promissory note
(Note 19)

Derivative financial Instrument
(Note 20)

Pledged deposit (Note 22)

Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 22)

Total

—Z—+tH+=-A=+—H

APHBRR KR
BE
FEUCE R (HiFE16)
FEUCH B (F7E17)
e R EMERFUA
(MFEE18)
el el B EE (M RE21)
BT (M E22)
Be RS SEY
(FF5E22)

et

—B-XxF+-A=+—8
SHHBRREFT
aE

FEUR B X (MfrE16)

FEUFI B (H5E17)

e REMEWRFIE
(FF7E18)

AR H =R (M EE19)

PTA SR T A (MisF20)

BHARFER (M EE22)

REMIBEEEYD
(FffE22)

5T

15 RERESNEMTA

Loans and
receivables

EXRREWRTE
HK$'000
FET

Assets

at fair value
through profit
or loss

A TER A
RiMEE
HK$'000
T

Total

et
HK$'000
THAT

766,909 - 766,909
6,042 - 6,042
2,776 - 2,776
1,778 - 1,778
4,750 - 4,750
13,445 - 13,445
795,700 - 795,700
899,265 - 899,265
5,841 - 5,841
3,940 - 3,940
233,448 - 233,448
- 15,306 15,306
130,433 - 130,433

1,272,927 15,306 1,288,233
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 15 RERHBSTNLMITAE(E)
(CONTINUED)

Other financial liabilities
at amortised cost

TR 8K A A 51 BR Y
HihemasE
As at 31 December
R+=HA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Liabilities per consolidated statement EHMERARIREE
of financial position
Other payables (Note 24) H A fE AT R (P 7E24) 1,027 786
Bank and other borrowings (Note 25) HRIT RE M (HIEE25) 95,370 396,074
Loan from the ultimate holding company BEPER A B ER(HIFE306)
(Note 30(a)) - 229,192
Total Bt 96,397 626,052
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16 LOANS RECEIVABLE 16 EBUEN
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—B—+F —ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Loans receivable fEY &R 782,434 915,578
Less: YA
Provision for individual impairment JE W A B E AT A
assessment of loans receivable BE (13,029) (13,265)
Provision for collective impairment R E SRR ER S
assessment of loans receivable BE (2,496) (3,048)
Loans receivable, net of provision MEREERENERER 766,909 899,265
Less: non-current portion W IERENER DY (234,043) (232,989)
Current portion mENEL 532,866 666,276
The Group’s loans receivable, which arise from the money lending REBRBEBSRHMEZBERRLAE
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans KBV E R E TS FTEE £ W0 R W B SR A TT AT
in Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. B-
Except for loans receivable of HK$8,080,000 (2016: HK$2,213,000), B A%48,080,0008 7L ( ZZ — 734 12,213,000
which are unsecured, bear interest and are repayable with fixed BID)WEER - FFE AR EEFETEN
terms agreed with customers, all loans receivable are secured by Bl BiRR AE R B R E AN - P IR
collaterals provided by customers, bear interest and are repayable ERUEFPREMNKFRIEAER R
with fixed terms agreed with the customers. The maximum WHERERFPZENETEHRRAEER - B
exposure to credit risk at each of the reporting dates is the carrying EREEHMERNSEREERR A LEX
value of the loans receivable mentioned above. Frif UL ESRBRTEIE o

122



v

BIREEEEAERLT 2017 FIR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI IR R M ()

16 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 16 BUER(E)
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—B—+F —ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Neither past due nor impaired M EE MR E 724,093 803,684
Past due but not impaired B A KRR E 45,312 98,629
Individually impaired loans receivable EERIE AR EKE K 13,029 13,265
782,434 915,578
Less: Impairment allowance W R ERE
~ Individually assessed — & RS (13,029) (13,265)
— Collectively assessed — HEFHE (2,496) (3,048)
766,909 899,265
As at 31 December 2017, loans receivable of HK$45,312,000 (2016: R-ZZE—+F+-_A=+—"8  A#
HK$98,629,000) were past due but not impaired. These were 45312,000 70 ( ZZF — 754 © 98,629,000
related to a number of third party customers for whom there was TT)REWERCBEEEARRE - %
no recent history of default. Based on past experience, except for RIBEHE R L ZE OB RN E =R
overdue personal loans receivable of HK$23,000 (2016: HK$18,000) P REBBFESR  BRERFRZOEE
with no collateral, the directors of the Group are of the opinion WFLA B 5823,0008 70 ( ZZ— 754 © 18,000
that no provision for impairment on individual loans is necessary BTN BREEERUB|MERNRE AR
for these balances as there has not been a significant change in EHRATERZEANRTmER LR
credit quality and the respective principals and/or interests that had 2EEFCBENEEAS R SF8
been overdue were still fully secured by the fair values of collaterals MASBEESERADEARZEERERNE
at their respective prevailing market prices. Accordingly, these FEHRRERE - At ZSE MBS
balances are still considered to be fully recoverable. ArI R o
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16 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

The aging analysis of these past due but not impaired loans
receivable is as follows:

16 BUIER(E)

%5 0 A B i KR E R B E RO AR iR
DT

As at 31 December

0-30 days 0£30H
31-90 days 31£290H
Over 90 days #BiEHo0 A

As at 31 December 2017, loans receivable of HK$13,029,000
(2016: HK$13,265,000) was individually impaired. The amount
of the provision was HK$13,029,000 (2016: HK$13,265,000) as at
31 December 2017. These were related to a number of third party
customers for whom the directors are of the view that the collection
of these loans receivable were not probable.

Movements on the Group’s individual impairment of loans
receivable are as follows:

BR+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
9,017 1227
9,678 69,905
26,617 27,497
45,312 98,629

RZZE—+F+-_A=+—H - 13,029,000
BIL(ZZF— /N ¢ 1326500078 70 ) K fE
WERBERRE - R-_Z—tF+=A
=+—8  BFESE513,0290008T(=Z
—7NEF 1 132650000870) - ZESRREES
RAETKAEREKEZERKERNS
HE=HEFAR -

AEEREERERRENESMT

Year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=+—HILLEE

At beginning of the year REH
(Reversal of provision)/provision for individual
impairment assessment of loans receivable

At end of the year RER
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(BefaRm) B

2017 2016
—B-tF  ZFAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T
13,265 9,911
(236) 3,354
13,029 13,265
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16 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 16 BWRERE)

As at 31 December 2017, reversal of collective impairment RZE—+F+-_A=+—8 EKRER
assessment of loans receivable of HK$552,000 (2016: HK$838,000) 9 L FDRE AT A B R A552,00008 7T (=
was made. The Group performs collective assessment of the loans T 755 1838000/ 7T) o AKEE BER
receivable by grouping together all its loans receivable with similar A REUEERR BN EWE R
credit risk characteristics and by applying a historical impairment ERABTREE(RAGRIAE(ZE—X
rate, taking the average of the most recent 5 (2016: 5) financial F AfE) MBFERE ARG e e ki
years of the percentage of impairment loss recognised in the REVFEEBEHEETEBENERESE
consolidated statement of comprehensive income to the total loans AAaFEERE) HERERHETH
receivable as at the respective year end dates. [RIET

Movements on the Group's collective impairment of loans REBEEWEFRERBENZEEHNT -

receivable are as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZE+-A=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—B—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FER FAT
At beginning of the year REH 3,048 3,886
Reversal of provision for collective impairment FEUNE SR R E RS
assessment of loans receivable (Note 7) B EE L (M) (552) (838)
At end of the year RER 2,496 3,048
A maturity profile of the loans receivable as at the end of the RIBEIEA R - EWER(FREE) RS
reporting period, based on the maturity date, net of provision, is as HIRE RN ERERanT -
follows:
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—~H
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Current BNER 532,866 666,276
Over 1 year and within 5 years Him—FE R AFUARN 66,229 80,950
Over 5 years HiEmhE 167,814 152,039
766,909 899,265
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16

17

LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2016 and 2017, certain properties mortgaged
to the subsidiary of the Company for loans granted to its respective
customers were pledged to independent third party licensed
money lenders to secure other borrowings granted to a subsidiary
of the Company. These properties were mortgaged to the Group for
securing loans receivable with carrying amount of HK$79,977,000
(2016: HKS$446,192,000) (Note 25(b)).

As at 31 December 2017, loans receivable of HK$90,898,000 (2016:
Nil) were charged to a bank to secure a bank loan facility granted to
a subsidiary of the Company (Note 25(a)).

INTEREST RECEIVABLES

16 BUIER(E)

RZE—RFER=_E—+tF+=-A=1+—
A SEFAERERMEFFARAAG—
BB ARzETYXEERTELE=
FEBBEA  AAEAAG—HEERR
EREMETIEER - ZEWETERT
ANEEABBEEEA79,977,0008 T ( ==
—7NEF 446,192,000/ 7T ) R FEUR BT 7k (BT =
25(b)) ©

R-ZTE—+F+=-F=+—H " 90,898,000
BIL(ZE—RF  B)WEKERE L
FERIT  LAMEARR A — R B A R ERIR
TEZREENER(FIE250)) -

17 EBRFE

As at 31 December
Rt+t=—A=+—8

2017 2016

—E—tF  —FAF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

THERT FHET

Interest receivables FEUF S 6,359 6,158

Less: N
Provision for individual impairment U B B E R R E R

assessment of interest receivables B (317) (317)
Interest receivables, net of provision HIBR B AR 18 1Y RN B 6,042 5,841

The Group's interest receivables, which arise from the money
lending business of providing property mortgage loans and
personal loans in Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

Except for interest receivables of HK$173,000 (2016: HK$30,000),
which are unsecured and are repayable with fixed terms agreed
with the customers, all interest receivables are secured by collaterals
provided by customers and are repayable with fixed terms agreed
with the customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk at each of
the reporting dates is the carrying value of the interest receivables
mentioned above.
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17 INTEREST RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 17 EBRFIE(E)

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—H

2017 2016

—F—tF —ERF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET FAT

Neither past due nor impaired M EE MR E 2,390 3,842
Past due but not impaired B A R E 3,652 1,999
Individually impaired interest receivables 2B Rl R E & R U 2 317 317
6,359 6,158

Less: Impairment allowance W B E

— Individually assessed — &R & (317) (317)
6,042 5,841

As at 31 December 2017, interest receivables of HK$2,390,000 (2016:
HK$3,842,000) was fully performing.

As at 31 December 2017, interest receivables of HK$3,652,000 (2016:
HK$1,999,000) were past due but not impaired. These were related
to a number of third party customers for whom there was no
recent history of default. Based on experience, except for overdue
personal interest receivables of HK$13,000 (2016: HKS$18,000) with
no collaterals, the directors of the Group are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary for these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the respective
principals and/or interests that had been overdue were still fully
secured by the fair values of collaterals at their respective prevailing
market prices. Accordingly, these balances are still considered to be
fully recoverable.

RZEBE—+E+-_A=+—80 " A#H
2,390,000/ 70 ( Z & — /X4 3,842,000/ 7T )
R FEU R B B BEETT »

RZZE—+HE+ZA=+—8 A
3,652,000/ 70 (ZZF — 78 4F + 1,999,000/ 7T )
WA EEBEE M ARME - ZEHE
HREZZERPEREHENE=ZFTF °
RIS - BREET 28 B ERAL AT
B13,0008 L (= F — 74 : 180007 L)
S ARNEEEETESANE - BHH
BEBAS R KF S NELRFRIES
BIRTMEFNAFEREER AR
SEES=RABERZSHESITIRABER
%o At - ZEERDWRAT2EWD -
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17 INTEREST RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 17 EWRFIZ(E)
The aging analysis of these past due but not impaired interest ZE 2B ERRE 2 YA SRR D
receivables is as follows: W
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—8H
2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T
0-30 days 0£30H 1,932 1,254
31-90 days 31290H 970 464
Over 90 days #BiE90 R 750 281
3,652 1,999
As at 31 December 2017, interest receivables of HK$317,000 (2016: R—_ZE—+FE+=-_A=+—8H " B
HK$317,000) were individually impaired. These were related to a 317,000/ 70 ( ZZF — /N4 ¢ 317,00078 7T ) HY
number of third party customers for whom the directors are of ERFEEERNRE ZESEHRESER
the view that the collection of these interest receivables were not BIRAGEMERDZERKFBHNZZ
probable. All these impaired interest receivables aged over 90 days. F=RAERPEY - FTBZS2RIERIKF

B IRERIIHIE0R -

All the interest receivables as at the end of the reporting period, RIEFSHA  AREBROMERERKF S
based on the maturity date, are current. BEENE -
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

18

B ORI IR R M ()

FERME - ZE R EMERRIE

As at 31 December
Rt+t=HA=+—8

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT FAT
Prepayments SEUNE ] 1,884 1,590
Deposits Be 2,761 3,488
Other receivables H At EUGRIR 15 452
4,660 5,530

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERRUE -« Re REMEKEIE
Less: non-current portion W SERENER S (1,341) -
Current portion mEhE s 3,319 5,530

The Group's deposits and other receivables are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

All deposits and other receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE

On 18 December 2015, the Company subscribed for a non-
listed Renminbi denominated Convertible Promissory Note of a
principal amount of RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$235,200,000) (the "Note") issued by Quark Finance Group
("Quark”). The Note carried an interest of 10% per annum and was
due to mature on 17 December 2018. The Note was convertible into
20% (minimum) to 40% (maximum) of the total number or ordinary
shares of Quark on a fully diluted as converted basis immediately
following the conversion if all of the principal amount of the Note
was converted into fully paid Series B Preferred Shares, depending
on the achievement of the performance indicators as disclosed in
the circular announced on 26 October 2015.

AEBE MRS REMEUGIRABTTAHE ©

P B 12 & I B b e Sk TR 5 BE 4 260 HA U £
AR o

AR R R

RZE—RAF+=_A+N\B XRAR
8% Quark Finance Group ([ Quark | ) AT % 17
N4 58 A A R 200,000,000 7T (8 & 749
235,200,000 7T ) 2 3F £ A KB AT R AR 7
HEB(ZER]D - 2R BEFHEI10ER
B RZZE-NF+-A++tBFHEH -
EEMNMEASBETHERAHEBRIIE
Sy RBEAIREREERESEETNE
B H 8 A Quark 38 A% 48 B H9 20% (&
B) 4% (&= ) - AR TFRETERNZ
E-—AF+AZ BB E
KIRIEIRMIE ©
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19 CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE (CONTINUED) 19 T[IARR A ER(4E)

Upon initial recognition, management classified the Note as
comprising of two components: host debt instrument initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost less impairment; and conversion right embedded in the Note,
which was classified as a derivative financial instrument (Note
20), initially recognised and subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

On 21 September 2017, Quark sent a written notice to the Company
seeking consent from the Company to settle the principal amount
and interest of the Note in full. In response to the said demand, on
22 September 2017, the Company gave written consent to Quark to
settle the principal amount and interest of the Note and accordingly
Quark arranged the full settlement of the outstanding principal
amount and all accrued but unpaid interest of the Note on the
same day.

The movement of the convertible promissory note is as follows:

RNpHERR - BRERRED KM EE
BRER D - EEB T AR A FEETIILHE
R WIRE R AR EETRERE
Ry BETESR T A (ME20) 2FEHM
wHEE - BRAREE AT ES ARDE
TTIATER R R ERTE -

RZE—tFNAZ+—H8 ' QuarkkAIAR
RIBHEMAN  BRkAAFREZEE
NEEASBREANE - AEFMER - K
NEIRZE—tF LA =+ = H\Quarki%
HEARE  UWENEEASBEFE
EI 0 QuarkkBE R BT 2 8ENZERN
REBRCERA BT RITFHE o

AARA G RIER BT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —ERF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET TR

Convertible promissory note AR A H R IR

At 1 January m—A—H 233,448 215,765
Interest income (Note 9) FLEHA (P 5E9) 22,432 31,011
Principal and interest received B S RFE (277,726) -
Gain from early redemption R ERIM I s 6,689 -
Exchange realignment (Note 9) b 5, SR B (M FE9) 15,157 (13,328)
At 31 December w+=ZA=+—A~ - 233,448
Less: non-current portion A IEmENER D - (151,956)
Current portion mENE D - 81,492
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20 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 20 fTESFTAE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —EREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FATT
Conversion right embedded in the Note R e A
At 1 January n—H—H 15,306 20,608
Fair value change N EE (14,495) (5302)
Loss on early redemption IR BRI EE (811) -
At 31 December Rt+—A=+—8H - 15,306
The conversion right embedded in Note referred to the investment EE WA R R AR R FE BE B s 19 P &k Quark
in the Note issued by Quark as set out in Note 19. During the year T2 EHARE HE_T—+F
ended 31 December 2017, a fair value loss on derivative financial +-A=+—HIEFE T4 /m T A
instrument of HK$14,495,000 (2016: HK$5,302,000) was recognised N AR 1R 144950008 T (ZF — /N F -
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 5,302,000/8 70 )N A 4R B WS RIER -
Upon the early redemption of the Note on 22 September 2017 as R-E—+FNA-+-_HRERELOERE
disclosed in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the B(REHIBRRMTI0OWE)  iTES
value of the derivative financial instrument was written down to MTEMNEERDOHMBESZ  WRIZEFEND
zero and a loss of HK$811,000 was recognised in the consolidated ZEMNEHEE WS REREIES1,000
statement of comprehensive income due to the early redemption BEIT ©
of the Note.
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21

22

REPOSSESSED ASSET 21 BPEIEE

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of FA - AEEELERFREEROERDER
collaterals held as security. The nature and carrying value of these BEE - ZEFBEERTZA=1+—H
assets held as at 31 December are summarised as follows: RV REREER AT -

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H

Repossessed property — residential property eIk ER sty ES 1,778 -
The estimated market value of the repossessed asset held by the REBMPBEKRBEER T —+tF+=
Group as at 31 December 2017 was HK$3,500,000 (2016: Nil). It A=+—B#8yETm{E /3,500,000 7T (=
comprises property in respect of which the Group has acquired T—RF )  ABEREE RBERER
access or control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary AZ Bk 305 & M B S A A ST S (40
actions by the properties concerned) for release in full or in part of BiBEREF AT R EBREITE)) Y
the obligations of a borrower. ME -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 22 RERBALF/YNEEATR
DEPOSIT
(a) Cash at bank and on hand (@ RITRFERSE

As at 31 December
BW+=-—A=+—8H

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERS 13,445 130,433
The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash at bank and on REERTRFERSOREERIA
hand are denominated in the following currencies: TEEGHE -

Hong Kong dollars BT 13,387 130,406
Renminbi ARHE 58 27
13,445 130,433
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22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 22 HERRESEVNSIEBER
DEPOSIT (CONTINUED) (#8)
(b) Pledged deposit (b) BIEBFER

Pledged deposit held at bank EHEFIRITER 4,750 -
As at 31 December 2017, HK$4,750,000 (31 December 2016: RZZE—+F+=-_A=+—H ' B
Nil) pledged deposit held at a bank was used to secure a FRERTTIF3R4,750,000/8 7T ( — T — /N 4F
bank loan facility (Note 25(a)). The Group’s pledged deposit is +=ZA=+—8: T)BERITEKE
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. B2 ER(BIEE250)) - ANEED T
FEHAETTETHE »
23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS 23 BENEHEE

All deferred income tax assets of the Group are expected to be TEHRAEBAMAREFNSHEESNBER

recovered after more than 12 months. +—{E A&k ME -

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as REFSTIRR B B EESHNT :

follows:

At 1 January »—A—H 806 983
Charged to the consolidated statement REPHRE RO (F3E10)

of comprehensive income (Note 10) (79) (177)
At 31 December W+—A=+—H 727 806
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The movement in deferred income tax assets during the year,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within
the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

At 1 January 2016 RZE—RFE—H—H
Charged to the consolidated ANE BHE e a0k
statement of comprehensive
income
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—RF
+=-A=+—8H
Credited/(charged) to the REPHRE SR
consolidated statement of A (F0RR)
comprehensive income
At 31 December 2017 N+
+=A=+—"

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of HK$505,000 (2016: HK$372,000) in respect of
losses amounting to HK$3,061,000 (2016: HK$2,255,000) that can be
carried forward indefinitely against future taxable income.
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23 EENSHEE(E)

EREANGHEERFANE S (WARGKF
— I RDAHE R RS ERIE )T

Provisions
for collective
impairment
Accelerated tax of loans
depreciation receivable Total
EWRER
MEHERE HERERE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATT FAIT T
342 641 983
(39) (138) (177)
303 503 806
13 (92) (79)
316 411 727

i RJ BE A5 4B 12 FE BRI it M) B3R 5 A X
HEE - RlBL AT H0RE B 22 S A SRR T A
BHREE -

MN-_ZT—+F+-A=+—8 K&EEY
4 5t 7] PR HA 45 8 30 AT 4 88 oK Bk e AR Y
U A K 5 183,061,00008 7T ( — & — /N4 ¢
2,255,00078 7T ) M 3R IE 715 7 & 505,000
HEIT(ZZ—75F ¢ 372,00087C) °
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24 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 EERAREMENRE

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—B—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Accruals FEFHER 2,010 2315
Other payables HAbFE (I FRIA 1,027 786
Total Bt 3,037 3,101

Accruals and other payables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. JEFT B R R A MIEN FRIEAETTRHE ©
25 BANKAND OTHER BORROWINGS 25 SRITREAMERR
Bank and other borrowings are analysed as follows: RITREMBERITOT -
As at 31 December
B+=—BA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF 2T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT FAT
Bank loan — secured (Note (a)) HRITER—BER(MiE@E) 31,000 -
Other borrowings — secured (Note (b)) Hb AR —FHER (M b) 64,370 396,074
Total bank and other borrowings RIT R EMERAREE 95,370 396,074
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25 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 25 SRITIREMER(E)
Movements in bank and other borrowings is analysed as follows: RITRAMBEREB AT -
2017 2016
—E—+tF BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT AT
At 1 January m—A—A 396,074 461,130
Repayments of other borrowings BEEMER (392,227) (84,091)
Repayments of bank loan EBRITER - (30,965)
Proceeds from other borrowings H At B RS 5RIE 60,523 50,000
Proceeds from bank loan RITERFBHRIEA 31,000 -
At 31 December Wt+tZA=+—H 95,370 396,074
(a) Bankloan - secured (a) fﬁﬁﬁ*” —FiER
As at 31 December 2017, the secured bank loan of —E—+F+ZA=+—H8 " B
HK$31,000,000 (2016: Nil), is denominated in Hong Kong ?ﬁﬂfﬁﬁfé K31 OOOOOO/E,YE(f:; —7N
dollars, repayable in one year and bears average interest rate T T)UETEHE - AR —FEREE
of 5.15% (2016: Nil) per annum. The bank loan was obtained Rt g E R &5, 15%(7 T — N4
from an independent third party bank and was secured by (i) T)FE - ZIRTERDIRBALFE=F
a floating charge on certain loans receivable of a subsidiary of RITEGS » WA TFIIE B R - ()R
the Company with carrying value of HK$90,898,000 (2016: Nil); Nal—REHBA ETEE@{EE%%B%,OOO
(ii) a floating charge on certain bank accounts of a subsidiary B(ZZE—RF: T)NETERE
of the Company with carrying value of HK$4,750,000 (2016: FOEBE ¢ (VAR E—EHER R
Nil); and (iii) a corporate guarantee from the Company. BREE 54,750,000 T (ZZF— 7<%
T)ME TRITERSZENE  RONA
NEIMABRHER -
(b) Other borrowings - secured (b) HittfER—HIKH
Other borrowings of HK$64,370,000 (2016: HK$396,074,000), H b fE35564,370,000/8 7T ( ZZ—7<F :
which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, repayable in 396,074,000/% TT) B TTEHE - R —
one year and bear average interest rate of 6.75% (2016: 6.25%— FREN  LEHFRE675%(ZF
6.75%) per annum. Such other borrowings were obtained from — NI 1 6.25%6.75%) 5T B o iZEH At
independent third party licensed money lenders and were ERREBBIE=ZTEHEEREA B
secured by the pledge of certain properties mortgaged to a AABHMERFPRLEZRMERT
subsidiary of the Company for loans granted to its respective ARAE—EHBARINE TYWERAR
customers and a corporate guarantee from the Company. NEK QR EREER - RZT—+
The fair value of these properties were HK$198,530,000 (2016 F+-A=1+—8 ZEMENLF
HK$862,850,000) as at 31 December 2017. 18 /3 198,530,0008 7T (=T — X :

862,850,000/ 7T ) °
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26 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 26 REREER
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REXBEERSE
Year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=+—HILEE
2017 2016
—B—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Profit before income tax BRF1S AT A 73,997 88,152
Adjustments for: BRI SIEEL A
Loan interest income (Note 6) B A 2 (FisEs) (103,479) (130,295)
Bank interest income HRITALEWA (37) (167)
Depreciation (Note 7) FrEE(fE7) 415 329
Interest income from convertible AR AR A B
promissory note (Note 9) (P 5E9) (22,432) (31,011)
Gain from early redemption of convertible 12 P8 o) AR R R PR Y
promissory note (Note 9) Wz (FF3E9) (6,689) -
Interest expenses FERX 14,159 34,471
Fair value change and loss on early redemption $T4 2B T AN A FEZES) &
on derivative financial instrument RFERIEE 15,306 5,302

(Reversal of provision)/provision for individual ~ FEURE kB @ B Rl (E 55
impairment assessment of loans receivable (BERE) B

(Note 16) (BizE16) (236) 3354
Reversal of provision for collective RN E R ERIRER S

impairment assessment of loans receivable BER L (Hie)

(Note 16) (552) (838)
Exchange (gains)/losses, net bE H (as) BB 58 (2,377) 41
Changes in working capital: EEELEE
Loans receivable FEWER 131,366 35913
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TEfTEIA « 75 M E b fEUR

B 870 (742)
Accruals and other payables FERTE R R EAEFRIE (64) (4,427)
Cash generated from operations CEETFTEER S 100,247 82
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26 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 26 RLREER(E)
(b) Reconciliation of financing activities (b) FIEEBHER
As at Foreign As at
1 January Interest exchange 31 December
2017 Cash flow expense movement 2017
®
i “Z2—tF
“E—tf +=R
—A—H HEeRE FEHX izl o) = =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TR TR THT TR
Bank and other borrowings RITREMIER (396,074) 300,704 - - (95,370)
Pledge deposit BRER - 4,750 - - 4,750
Amount due to ultimate e AR A F]
holding company A (229192 247,188 (5216) (12,780) -
Total from financing activities BEEBAGEE (625,266) 552,642 (5,216) (12,780) (90,620)
27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 A
Authorised share capital EE IR

Equivalent

Number Nominal value nominal value

of ordinary of ordinary of ordinary
shares shares shares
EEREE EEkEE TERZHEE
HKS HKS

BT BT

At31December 2016, 1January 2017 R-ZE-XF+=-A=+—-A8"

and 31 December 2017 —E2—tE-A-HK
“E2—t5+=-A=1+—H 10,000,000,000 001 100,000,000
Issued share capital 2ERITRA
Number of
issued shares Amount
ERTROEE Kok ]
HKS
BT
At 31 December 2016, 1 January 2017 RZB—ARF+=ZA=+—8"

and 31 December 2017 —E—+tH—-A—-HK

—E2—+tF+=-A=+—H 400,000,000 4,000,000
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29

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RESERVES

The amount of the Group's reserve and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statements of changes in equity on page 72 of the financial
statements.

The Group capital reserve represents the excess of the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
pursuant to the reorganisation prior to the Listing of the Company’s
share, over the nominal value of the Company’s share issued in
exchange thereof.

COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee
The Group leases its office under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The lease terms are 2 years, and the lease agreements
are renewable at the end of the lease period at market rate.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

28

29

B ORI IR R M ()

@&

AEEREERBEFENEECERE
BEANHERENENAMEREDE -

AEBEZERFBEREARRBRMN EH
MBEARBIWBEZHBAREEFER
FEBBARBDEHITERRBZRNZ
[E=

&I

REHEAE - AKEEE[SFRAA

AEERBEIAIBENELHEERZEE
HEHRAZE - HEFHAME  HEHHER
REMERFEMSHSES -

RBETIHBEEEHE  ARxEAeR
BT

As at 31 December
W+=-—A=+—H

—FR
—Eh%F

Not later than one year
One to five years

2017 2016
—2—tF —TAF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHT FHT
4,019 1,371
1,358 -
5,377 1,371
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30

The Group is controlled by Blossom Spring (incorporated in BVI),
which is the ultimate holding company of the Group and owns
75% of the Company’s shares. The remaining 25% of the shares are
widely held. The ultimate controlling party is Ms. Jin.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
this consolidated financial statement, the following is a summary of
the significant transactions carried out between the Group and its
related parties in the ordinary course of business during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2017, and balances arising from
related party transactions as at 31 December 2016 and 2017.

(@) Interest expenses and loan from the ultimate
holding company

Shareholder facility RERE R
At 1 January w—H—H
Interest expense (Note 9) FLEFZ (FiEE9)
Principal and interest paid e REMHE
Exchange realignment (Note 9) b 5, & 5 B (P EE9)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8
Less: non-current portion R FERNERER
Current portion BIERER 5>

On 21 July 2015, Blossom Spring and the Company had
entered into a shareholder facility agreement (the “Facility”)
pursuant to which Blossom Spring has agreed to grant to
the Company an unsecured facility in the amount of up to
RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$235,200,000)
for a term of three years and bearing an interest rate of 3.0%
per annum on the outstanding principal amount from time
to time for the purpose of funding the Company’s purchase
of the Note. The Company shall repay interest annually and
principal in 6 instalments commencing 17 December 2017 to
and including 17 December 2018, as disclosed in Note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

140

BAR S XX 5

ANEE hBlossom Spring (R EBE LB ST
AL )2 » Blossom Spring A28 S B 5 48
ERAR - WHEGARRR75%HIIMN - Hék
25%RMMAIBZ THE - REEGIT AR
+ o

BRAEGHUBREEMBOAEZENRS
MEEEIN - T AL EEE R A
REE-_Z—XRER-_ZT—tF+_-A
=t -BULFEEERFERKBRTETH
BEARS  UERZZE—RER-_ZT—+
FH+-A=t—HEBEBARSFEEN

+
wEER o

(a) RRERAAAEIHEER

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
229,192 235,469
5,216 7,010
(247,188) -
12,780 (13,287)

- 229,192

- (178,815)

- 50,377

WN_ZFE—RFLH_+—H - Blossom
SpringE@ AR ARFIZREEH ([ E
1)+ Bt - Blossom Spring B Al &
EARRBRTFEERER €8s
Al ZE A R % 200,000,000 7T (1% R4
235,200,000 7T) + BEI=F « WK
PLAREERE FEIZFF E30%EE
NAARRBBEZRRERES - AR
FIASFEENE VYE-_ZT—tF
+ZA+EAABE_ZE—N\F+=
BAt++tB(8fEZB)DefEEAS
(FBINE PSRRI TR 19ATHER) ©
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Interest expenses and loan from the ultimate (a)
holding company (Continued)

The Facility is a back-to-back financing with a limited recourse

in which the Company does not have to repay the Facility

unless the Company receives payment from Quark.

Upon the early redemption of the Note from Quark on 22
September 2017 as disclosed in Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Company repaid the outstanding
principal and all accrued but unpaid interest due to the
ultimate holding company in full on 4 October 2017.
Indemnity from a controlling shareholder (b)
Ms. Jin has entered into a deed of indemnity with the Group to

personally indemnify the Company for, among of other things,

damages, legal costs and liabilities in connection with the

legal proceedings as described in Note 33 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Key management compensation
The remuneration of executive Directors of the Company and
other members of key management is shown below:

B ORI IR R M ()

30 BABA RS (4E)

iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁiiﬁﬁﬁﬁ
ll‘E
ERAE—BEEHEREYNAERRE
REE B BRIEARQ B EIQuarkfy
N BRIARRIBEEEER -

QuarkkRZZE—+F N AZ+ZHER
BERIEEE (KA BmEM 1985
Z) ARFER_E—+E+AWA
BEEEERXGBRERARNKRER
K BRBETARTHE -

BERBERHOTE

S LT RAEET L BERE - UAE
ABZEAARBAE - Heh @R
RREFERNEERE  ARBAR
B (W& PRI B RARMI RE33ATL) ©

TEEEASHM
ARAMTEERAMEEZERAR
ZHMIN TR -

Year ended 31 December
BZE+-A=1+—HLEE

e BRI
BB

Salaries, benefits and bonus
Pension costs

Remuneration paid to a related party (d)

2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
3,610 4,009
80 102
3,690 4111
XA F R 5 2 Fr

Year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=+—HILLEE

A—BARBEEZRBH
Sz e KRR ERA

Salaries and pension costs paid to the
spouse of a director of the Company

2017 2016
—B—tF  ZFAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T
252 147
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31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 31 AR BRRRRFEEEH

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Statement of Financial Position of the Company

KRB BRI K

As at 31 December
Rt+t=—A=+—8

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt FHET THT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ENRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB R AR E 444,795 444,795
Amount due from subsidiaries NGO 138,468 124,836
Convertible promissory note ALHARE SRR - 151,956
Derivative financial instrument PTESRMTA - 15,306
Total non-current assets FRBEEEE 583,263 736,893
Current assets REEE
Convertible promissory note AR H R - 81,492
Cash and cash equivalents ReKAeEEY 173 1,140
Total current asset REEEHAE 173 82,632
Total assets EE#E 583,436 819,525
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners FNNETEZ 2SN
of the Company iR
Share capital A 4,000 4,000
Other reserves E At @) 566,591 566,591
Retained earnings REBEBF| (a) 12,685 19,742
Total equity R 583,276 590,333
LIABILITIES 88
Non-current liability FERBEE
Loan from the ultimate holding company — FAIZRR A RIE R - 178,815
Current liabilities REAE \
Loan from the ultimate holding company A ZR A BB - 50,377
Accruals JE:tE A 160 -
Total current liabilities nEEEEE 160 50,377
Total liabilities =Nt 160 229,192
Total equity and liabilities EnRkBERRHE 583,436 819,525

ARBMBRRKREEETEN _F— \F
AT ER#AENRLHATALRS

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved
by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2018 and was signed on its

behalf. BE o
Ms. Wang Yao T ¥z + Ms. Jin Xiaoqin £EE 2+

Director E& Director £
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= s 3| 2. =, =
31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 31 AQABBFRARREGEELE(B)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company Mzt AATEEHE
Share Capital Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
B AR E BEAERE REZF &t
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHT FHET FAT FHT
Balance at 1 January 2016 R-ZB-XRFE—A—BZ#&8H 122,176 444,415 986 567,577
Total comprehensive income FREFGWALE
for the year - - 44,356 44,356
Transactions with owners BEFANRS
Dividend paid relating to 2015 BR-_Z—RAFONRE - - (14,400) (14,400)
Dividend paid relating to 2016 BT —RFEMRE - - (11,200) (11,200)
Total transactions with owners, REBEANRZEHE
recognised directly in equity (EERERER) - - (25,600) (25,600)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R-B—-RE+ZA=+—B2z&H 122,176 444,415 19,742 586,333
Representing IEATIER
Reserves & 122,176 432415 12,142 566,733
Proposed final dividend EEAHRE - 12,000 - 12,000
Proposed special dividend BRI - - 7,600 7,600
Balance at 31 December 2016 R=ZB—XRE+=A=+—8
ZEERR 122,176 444415 19,742 586,333
Balance at 1 January 2017 REB—tF—A—HZ#&H 122,176 444,415 19,742 586,333
Total comprehensive income FREFGWABE
for the year - - 20,143 20,143
Transactions with owners BEEFANKS
Dividend paid relating to 2016 BA—Z—R"FEMNRE - - (19,600) (19,600)
Dividend paid relating to 2017 BE-_Z—tFEMKRE - - (7,600) (7,600)
Total transactions with owners, BEBANRZHEE
recognised directly in equity (EERERER) - - (27,200) (27,200)
Balance at 31 December 2017 REB—tF+ZA=+—B2&R 122,176 444,415 12,685 579,276
Representing {HLATIER
Reserves & 122,176 432,415 12,685 567,276
Proposed final dividend EEARHRE - 12,000 - 12,000
Balance at 31 December 2017 R=ZB—tHF+-A=+—-HBZ&H 122,176 444,415 12,685 579,276
The Company's capital reserve represents the excess of the fair value of the net assets REAEENARRBERNEBRNARBIRMD LA
of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to the reorganisation prior to the ANRIRIBEAWENBARNEEFENAFEBL
listing of the Company's share, over the nominal value of the Company’s share issued in NN AR Eat B R R B TR (D E(E 2 SEE -

exchange therefor.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, a company may make distributions RERSHENEE  ARURETERLTEELRRE
to its shareholders out of the capital reserves in certain circumstances. REKRELDIR
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32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 32 EEEFRFI=E
(a) Directors’s and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EBERATNEH
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive of ARG EREEREHOM ST 40
the Company is set out below: D
For the year ended 31 December 2017: BE-_FT—tHF+=-A=+—
HIEFE :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services
as a director whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking

FRESAALAANBLAERRABARBNC HRERMS

Discretionary
Fees Salary bonuses  Pensioncosts  Other benefits Total
e e BfERA BIFEHA EfbiEH @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR T TR TR
Executive Directors UirEs
Ms. Wang Yao THRT 600 - - 18 - 618
Ms. Jin Xiaogin SEEQT 600 - - 18 - 618
1,200 - - 36 - 1,236
Independent non-executive BUEHAES
Directors
Mr. Man Yiu Kiwong, Nick NIRRT 240 - - - - 240
Dr.Ng Lai Man, Carmen RENfEL 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis EERiE 240 - - - - 240
720 - - - - 720
During the year, no director has waived any emoluments (2016: FA - BBEESHERABS(ZZ
Nil). —NEE) -
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32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 32 EEREARFIZE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’s and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERERBIEFM(E)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016: BE-_ZF-—X"E+=-A=+-—
HILFE :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services
rwhether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking
] BREEARSEOE ARELHE

Salary bonuses Pension costs  Other benefits
e BERL  RRENE Aftiar]
HKS'000 0 HK$'000
BT BT T
Executive Directors HiTEE
Ms. Wang Yao S J'en 600 - - 20 - 620
Ms. Jin Xiaogin sRELT 600 - - 20 - 620
1,00 - - 40 - 1,240
Independent non-executive BUKHTES
Directors
Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick SRR AE 240 - - - - %0
Dr.Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXEL %0 - - - - %0
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis EERiE %0 - - - - p|
720 - - - - 720
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32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

146

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits or termination benefits during the year (2016: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no consideration
was provided to or receivable by third parties for making
available director’s services (2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors

Save as disclosed in Note 19, there are no loans, quasi-loans
or other dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors (2016:
Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions”
in the Report of the Directors and Note 30(a), no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year (2016: Nil).

EEEMRFZE(ER)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EERINERBERN

I 48 T 2 AN 6 R DU 3K & R
EAEARBEM AR EMN(ZF—X
FE)

RESRBEE=FREHNK
=

HE-F—+5+-A=+—AIF
¥ emREERBAESRER
B E=HmERRE( X
T )

BERUES - ZEFEAER
REZSESRHECERR
EHRANER BERRHM
BRESFE19PT IR E SN - WEBANIAE
2 OXEWNEIABRERZEEZAH
BZERRRZm ANER - BEFRK
HMRZH(ZF—RF &)

EERRE RPREHNZE
AR
BREZEWREIERS ]| & MK
0@MEEES  BERFERIN
FREMER - AR R W ETLEM
HAEEXBEHARNRREEHRA
BEAm(BEWmERIER)NEAR
5 RHRAK(ZT—RF &) -
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33 LITIGATION

In July 2014, an Independent third party (the “Plaintiff’) filed a
claim in the Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong
Kong against one of the Company’s subsidiary’s customers (the
"Customer”) as first defendant and the Company’s subsidiary as the
second defendant, alleging that, in 2013, the Company's subsidiary
had not acted in good faith in entering into a mortgage financing
arrangement with the Customer since the Company's subsidiary had
actual or constructive notice of that borrower’s intent to defraud
creditors and/or lack of good faith (the “Litigation”). Accordingly,
the Plaintiff sought a declaration that the mortgage provided by the
Customer to the Company’s subsidiary (the “Mortgage”) is void and
be set aside, the registration of the Mortgage at the Land Registry
be vacated, together with damages to be assessed, and interest and
costs to be paid.

In October 2015, the Plaintiff and the Company's subsidiary
had carried out a mediation discussion with no result. Two case
management conferences were held on 26 July 2016 and 19
January 2017, and the trial has been scheduled by the Court of First
Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong to be carried out from 9
May 2018 to 16 May 2018,

The Directors have sought the opinion of an independent legal
counsel in respect of the merits of the case, and have considered
that, based on the preliminary advice and tentative views of the
legal counsel, the Group has a good prospect of successfully
defending the claim. As such, the Directors intend to vigorously
contest the claim.

On 17 December 2014, the Customer had been adjudged
bankrupt by the Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong
Kong. The Directors reassessed the collectability of this loan with
reference to the validity of the Mortgage due to the Litigation
and the creditability of the Customer, and considered that an
impairment of the outstanding loans receivable in the amount of
HK$8,800,000 should be recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2013.
As such, the amount due from the Customer in the amount of
HK$8,800,000 included in loans receivable as at 31 December 2016
and 2017 had been fully impaired.

33

B O F AR M ()

HiEN

“ET-FEA —RBUYE=H(TRSE
ADREERFER RFEES AR BN
BRAN—R2EP(EFP] FRE—WKE
NI EARRBMBAR (ERE _WEA)R
HER - ERARBMNBARRN T —=
FHEREPAY —RIZBUW B LERS L&
BEHTE HEHERARANBEARER
HMEREER LEEMATZBERAE
BRFSREREA R, IR Z B ([FFRR])
At - REASKEEEFPAARAME
NEREAIRE ([1Z18]) B ER K EF
BE - BUERIBE L EMENERL - FHE
BERES  XEFE RS IEKA -

RZZF—RFTAH  BREARKRRFMNE
NEETHABN SR KBER - MSEN
EEEHRON _T—AR"FLtA-+TXRAR
“E—tF-ATNBET BBEERF
FERRIVEEDFIR - \FHANA
2T N\FRATNAHEETEA

FEERREORDREBIHBLEE
MER  wRA - ERERBRNNSE
RREEBEL  AEERA RS
B LG - Al EERAERREE
i <

RZE—NMF+-_A++tH " BEFHEES
BEERRINEREATHE - EF22EH
RFRRBEFEARENEBERE - &
FAHZERNAREREE - YRAER
HE-Z—=F+-A=+—"HIFEHN
AOHRE N ERAERREERKETR
1E8,800,000/8 TTHYRE ALt - RZZ—R
FR_FE—+F+-_A=+—H8 it ARE
U B S e Uk 22 5 3R TE 8,800,000 7T E S R
FE o
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A FHMBEE

RESULTS E 3

Revenue Wiz 103,479 130,295 124322 107,767 121,240

Profit and total comprehensive income 5 A JEIGH)F B FI &
for the year attributable to owners LN 63,006 76,543 47,180 35,552 44518

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE

Total assets BEHE 799,045 1,291,745 1319,654 899,399 853,826
Total liabilities BEEE 100,730 629,236 708,088 324,213 749,988
Total equity REmBE 698,315 662,509 611,566 575,186 103,838
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